
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

GENERAL MEETING 
Wednesday, October 4, 2017 – 10:00 A.M. 

Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 
94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us  
 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are 
held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance 
notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

 
AGENDA 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public.  
For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted prior to start of the meeting.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
2. ADOPTION/AMENDMENT OF THE AGENDA (5 minutes)  

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items in the Consent Calendar may be removed for separate discussion 

and/or action at the request of any Commissioner) (5 minutes)  
A. Approval of the 8/16/2017 General Meeting draft minutes 
B. Approval of the 5/3/2017 General Meeting draft minutes 
C. Approval of City of Brookings Thank You Letter 
D. Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) /Sixes River Fishing Access in lieu of tax 

certification 
E. Approval of the 17th Amendment to Oregon Health Authority  (OHA) Agreement for Public 

Health Financing #148007 
F. Notice of 2018 Change Fees for Vital Records 
G. Approval of Lease and Order (Curry County/Moore) Airport Hangar 10  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 minutes per person; 30 minute limit for all public comment) 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS 

None 
 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS/APPOINTMENTS  (5 minutes) 
A. Appointments And Order For Board of Property Tax Appeals  (BOPTA)  
B. Appointment And Order For Coos-Curry Housing Authority  

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING 

None 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS/PENDING ACTIONS 
Curry County/Curry Community Health (CCH) Property Exchange Review. -  John Hitt, Interim County 
Administrator and Ken Dukek CCH CEO (20 minutes) 

 

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


 
 
 

 
9. DISCUSSION/BOARD DIRECTION/DECISION  

A. Motion To Direct Staff  Re: Travel Policy #20438, and Supporting Documents, Possible Motion 
to Direct Staff. -  Commissioner Huxley (15 minutes)  

B. Additional Audio/Video Equipment.  - Commissioner Huxley (5 minutes)  
C. Allcare Grant Discussion - Next Steps.  - John Huttl, County Counsel (20 minutes) 
D. Brookings head Start Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Summary Document. – 

John Huttl, Curry County Counsel; Chair Huxley (20 minutes) 
E. Update On Charter Channel 181. - John Huttl, County Counsel (10 minutes) 
F. Designation of Vehicle for Commissioner Boice. – Commissioner Boice (15 minutes)  
G. Payroll Distribution change for Sheriff John Ward. – Commissioner Boice  (15 minutes)  

 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS/MEETING SCHEDULE   (5  minutes) 

A. October 11, 2017 Board of Commissioners’ Workshop at 10:00AM  -- Commissioners’ Hearing 
Room – County Lands/Brookings Airport/ Tax Info Report 

B. October 18, 2017 Board of Commissioners’ General Meeting at 10:00AM – Commissioners’ 
Hearing Room 

C. November 1, 2017 Board of Commissioners’ General Meeting at 10:00AM – Commissioners’ 
Hearing Room 
 

 
11. INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR ORAL REPORT (John Hitt, Interim County 

Administrator) (5 minutes) 
A. Planned Office Move 
B. County Accountant Position  
C. Possible Special Meeting November 29, 2017  
 

 
12. COMMISSIONER UPDATES    (15 minutes)  

A. Commissioner Boice  
B. Commissioner Gold 
C. Commissioner Huxley 

 
13. ADJOURN 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Meeting Minutes August 16, 2017 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10-04-17 DEPARTMENT:   Counsel  TIME NEEDED:  2 min.  
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Counsel Staff PHONE/EXT: 3291 TODAY’S DATE: 09-20-17    
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Draft minutes for Review  
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Minutes 
(1)Minutes 08-16-17 (draft)     
(2)Minutes 05-03-17 (draft)  
 
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Consent Calendar 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

Page 1 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

GENERAL MEETING 
Wednesday August 16, 2017 – 10:00 A.M. 

Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 
94235 Moore Street, Vice Chair Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us  
 

Meeting Minutes  
 
 
Present: Thomas Huxley, Chair; Sue Gold, Vice Chair; Court Boice, Commissioner; John Huttl, 
Counsel; and Brenda Starbird, Legal Assistant   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

Chair Huxley called the meeting to order at 10:00A.M.  
 

2. AGENDA AMENDMENTS:    
 Late Submittal –Roads (Hire Order).  Placed in Late Submittal Folder for 2017-08-16 

General Meeting in BOC Packets drive. The Board agreed to add the late submittal under 
announcements, as Road Master Robbins was in the audience.   

 Vice Chair Gold said she also received a request from Jay Trost re “Stuff the buss” 
information and that it would be a short presentation (5 min).   Commissioner Boice 
suggested placing right behind Road Master, under announcements. The Board agreed.   

 Vice Chair Gold also said she received a letter from Terry Brayer (handout).  He could not be 
present and requested it be read into the record.  It had to do with the All Care Grant and the 
showers.  There was Board discussion re policy and the final conclusion was that the letter 
would be entered into the record, but not read. 

 Commissioner Boice said the Governor had declared a state of emergency and would like 
Curry County to declare a state of emergency for the upcoming Eclipse.  He would like that 
added to the agenda.  Counsel Huttl said he had some materials on that.  Chair Huxley said 
this would be put just before Commissioner Comments item following item 13.   

 Commissioner Boice also had a request/comment re the meeting for expanded health care to 
take place at SWOCC in Brookings tomorrow.   Chair Huxley said this could be put under 
Commissioner comments.  Commissioner Boice and Vice Chair Gold accepted. There was 
full Board agreement. 

 Chair Huxley said he was going to present documentation regarding agenda items 13b, c, and 
d, with additional information.   

 Chair Huxley asked Counsel Huttl if Executive Session had to do with Brookings Head Start.   
Counsel Huttl said he was going to give the Board the option to put those agenda items in 
Executive Session.   He said 12a was a draft agreement with City/Cal Ore and wanted to 
discuss in ES.  Counsel Huttl said he had been approached from a representative from the 
Nesika Beach Water District re purchasing a piece of county owned property.   Chair Huxley 
said he was going to have Brookings Head Start moved out of ES if it was included.   

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


 

Page 2 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

 Chair Huxley questioned Counsel Huttl about the Public Hearing re All Care Grant.  Counsel 
Huttl said he put this on as a public hearing only to free any speakers from the 3 minute time 
period noting those could take a large amount of time.  Chair Huxley asked the Board if they 
were OK with the manner in which it was in.  The Board agreed that they were. Chair Huxley 
again noted by calling it a public hearing it would waive the time limit.  

3 APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
Vice Chair Gold motioned to approve the agenda as amended with comments as presented.  
Commissioner Boice seconded the motion.   Motion passed 3-0. 

 
4 ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

Chair Huxley read the following Announcements: 
a. Thursday, August 17, 2017 - 6:00P.M. - SWOCC in Brookings, Oregon – South County Health 

Services Multi-Jurisdiction Workshop.  County Commissioners will be in attendance, public is 
welcome! (Flier posted on Board) 

b. Monday, September 4, 2017 – County Offices Closed (Labor Day) 
c. Wednesday, September 6, 2017 – Board of Commissioners’ Meeting at 10:00A.M. 
d. Wednesday, September 13, 2017 – Board of Commissioners’ Workshop at 10:00A.M  

Chair Huxley requested staff add topic on future agendas so the Board knows what will be on the 
workshop.   

e. Added Hire Order for the Roads Department.  Doug Robbins, Road Master spoke about the position.    
Vice Chair Gold motioned to approve the hire order.  Commissioner Boice seconded the motion.  
Motion passed 3-0.   

f. Added “stuff the bus 2017” presentation by Jay Trost, Juvenile Director.  Trost presented a handout 
to the Board re “stuff the bus 2017” stating the program assists youths whom are economically 
challenged.    Trost will leave information in the BO Meeting Rm. Door.  
  
Chair Huxley would entertain a motion to remove agenda item 9f and move it to 4g since staff was 
waiting in the audience.  Vice Chair Gold moved as stated.  Commissioner Boice seconded.  Motion 
Passed 3-0. 
 

g.    Letter – re Reinvestment Grant.  Mick Espinoza from the Sheriff’s Department explained the history 
about the funds.  Counsel Huttl said this letter was a letter of support and the grant would come back 
before the Board, if awarded.  Vice Chair Gold moved to sign letter of support for grant.  Commissioner 
Boice seconded the motion.  Motion passed 3-0.  

  
5 PUBLIC COMMENTS:  (3 minutes per person; 30 minute limit for all public comment) 

Chair Huxley said any submitted public comments not on a topic on the agenda would be heard first.  
And Mary Rowe requested to be heard first due to a stated disability.   
Rowe – Coos Curry Housing Authority Board – assignment of a liaison. Rowe requested the Board of 
Commissioners appoint a liaison Commissioner to the Coos Curry Housing Board.  Chair Huxley said 
this item was up for discussion under 14b and would be further discussed then.  
Rowe – All Care Grant – Shower issue for the homeless.   Requesting All Care Grant money to help 
fund a shower trailer.   
David Barnes:  Passed – no public comment at this time. 
Gordon Clay: Mr. Clay indicated Suicide awareness & prevention month was September.  Clay 
presented the Board with draft proclamations for Suicide prevention month and bullying prevention 



 

Page 3 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

month (October).  Chair Huxley thanked Mr. Clay.  Counsel Huttl said the proclamations/resolutions 
would be on the next agenda if the Board approved.  Commissioner Boice thanked Mr. Clay.  Vice 
Chair Gold said Mr. Clay is very “faithful”, and attends every school Board meeting.    

 
6 APPROVAL OR CORRECTION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 

a. Commissioner - 3-29-17 Special Meeting Minutes  
Vice Chair Gold moved to approve.  Commissioner Boice seconded.  Motion passed 3-0.   

 
7 CONSENT CALENDAR: 

a. Counsel - Brookings Airport Hangar Lease – 1B Huether   
b. Counsel - Brookings Airport Hangar Lease – 3C Woodfin  
c. Counsel - Scrivener’s Error – Order 20249  
d. Counsel - Scrivener’s Error – Order 20250  
e. Counsel - Scrivener’s Error – Order 20251  

 
Chair Huxley reviewed the above consent calendar.  Counsel Huttl said the items were self-explanatory 
noting item 11 on the agenda would address the above scrivener’s errors.  Commissioner Boice moved 
to approve the consent calendar.  Vice Chair Gold seconded the motion.  Motion passed 3-0.  

 
8 PUBLIC HEARING:  

a. All Care Proposals and Order   
a. Brookings Harbor Housing Needs Assessment   
b. Oasis Shelter  
c. Oregon Coast Community Action (ORCCA) 
d. The Curry Homeless Coalition’s Point in Time 

At 10:51A.M. Chair Huxley turned over the hearing to Commissioner Boice.  Sam Engle was introduced 
to BOC by Commissioner Boice.  Mr. Engle said he was the All Care Health Coordinator and his role in 
the county was regarding housing issue needs. He explained the County was awarded the $100,000 grant 
and explained the County was able to flex the use of the money, noting All Care would like to be given 
the opportunity to work with individuals whom are given money to measure output/success.    
Commissioner Boice thanked Mr. Engle for the flexibility to work on a different approach with the 
County.   Vice Chair Gold questioned Mr. Engle that if the Board approved the requests would the 
individuals work directly with him? Engle said he would hope that would be the case.  Commissioner 
Boice explained All Care would still have to approve the applications.  Counsel Huttl said the BOC 
order is to recommend to All Care those applications that had been submitted, and All Care would have 
final approval.   
Chair Huxley said the original doc approved 100K to assist in development of housing needs assessment 
and plan, and until in writing, feels the money is still for that purpose.  He said he understands uses had 
changed from development of housing needs assessment and plan, and now entities were requesting 
money to be used for specific needs.  He questioned who would be going to administer this through to 
completion, further stating he didn’t see county being the administrator as there are were no funds 
allocated.  Mr. Engle said he would take on that roll.  Chair Huxley said by the next regular meeting he 
would like Counsel to have prepared an agreement between All Care and County, and requests 
consensus, of this thought, by the other two Board members.  If Board considered the applications 
before them today, then the thought would be to bring back in a resolution and they would go to All 
Care for approval.  This could be done in multiple ways.  Chair Huxley would like this in one document 



 

Page 4 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

(stand-alone).  Commissioner Boice asked Engle why All Care wanted this to pass through the County.  
Engle said the funds were granted to initially study homelessness in the county.  He said he would be 
happy to work with Counsel to make this best work.  He said he was able to receive input from the 
community directly and he was happy to be a partner in the process.  Commissioner Boice asked if the 
original document addressed homeless and housing needs.  Chair Huxley replied that it was housing, not 
homelessness.  Commissioner Boice stressed the local folks had a better handle on the community need 
and he’d seen a lot of enthusiasm and a new momentum.  Counsel Huttl reviewed clarification re 
administration of grant.  He said Commissioner Boice solicited the applicants for the grant and he would 
anticipate Commissioner Boice be the local contact and bring to board, but that the Board would still 
approve.   Counsel Huttl said this would be clarified in the agreement as well.  Counsel Huttl asked 
Commissioner Boice if everything ok with the way it had been going.  Commissioner Boice would be 
the contact following appropriation of funds.  All agreed in the process.  Commissioner Boice read an 
email from Gary Milliman into the record.   
Public comments:  
Lauren Paulson from Harbor re Re-home discussion.  Adjuncts to everything discussed here.    
Howard Flood – Brookings re Vietnam Vets of America.  Was hoping All Care would change criteria 
for grant and happy that happened.  Commissioners should approve requests from the applicants that had 
applied.  
Jim Johnson – Colvin street (office) Catholic lay minister to jail and hospital known as “beyond 
rejections” outreach ministry.  He said he was a member on multiple various boards.  Homelessness had 
tripled in last 8 years since he’s been here.  He said he particularly supported the shower system 
requested noting there had been support from St. Charles and people in the community to help with this 
project.   
Jay Trost - Brookings Oregon – Echo sentiments of Jim Johnson and Mary Rowe (earlier) in support of 
the community shower project.  He said this would meet the needs for basic hygiene.  Would like to see 
at least 20K set aside for the project.  Details still needed to be worked out, bids taken, permanent vs 
mobile, maintenance of structure, policies and procedures, preferably before this winter.   
Leah Seavey Oasis – Serves all of Curry County.  She would like to use money for 
transitional/supportive housing - provide subsidized housing with case management.  Mostly would 
come out of shelter and transition into public.  Been in talks with veteran’s group and include female 
vets if get funding.  Gave stats on # of days stay had increased (doubled) since 2014.  Housing was 
scarce.   
Beth B. Hidalgo – Two proposals – (1) Oregon Coast Community Action – a fund allowing for more 
flexibility (not confined to constraints of housing funds) dedicated to homeless prevention.  
(2) Curry County homeless Coalition – 5K to assist purchasing items to distribute during homeless 
census.  Lack Shelters, need people to come forth and engage in conversation.   
Connie Hunter – South Curry County – Population density…26.7% of county population was Veterans 
and of that percentage, 35% lived in the south county.  Would like All Care funds to address this.  
Advocates for support.   
Commissioner Boice moved to accept proposals put before Board with projects giving a pre-approval 
and send to All Care – Vice Chair Gold seconded.  It was noted there appeared to be about 8K left.  
Commissioner Boice said he was working with John Hitt to possibly use money to work with SCDC.  
Counsel Huttl said several speakers talked about a portable shower but noted there was no application 
submitted for that.  Trost said there were discussions happening re this being sponsored in the 
community or Parks and he was waiting for clarification.    Trost said he was before the Board speaking 



 

Page 5 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

on behalf of homeless advocacy reiterating details needed to be worked out with bids taken realizing the 
money not be awarded today, but requested it be earmarked.   
Jim Johnson – No application for All Care because of the ambiguity and circumstances due to Board 
discussions in past months.  Not sure if they were to go directly to All Care.  Will probably be last big 
project he works on and wants it to be successful.  Vice Chair Gold stated her main concern was the 
maintenance and cleaning of showers. Johnson concurred by adding the holding tank details, 
etc.…needed to be worked out.   
Counsel Huttl suggested bringing something back for Board next agenda and would work with Mr. 
Engle and there could possibly be other applications for the resolution or order.  Counsel Huttl 
suggested a vote at the next meeting to submit to All Care.   
Commissioner Boice asked for a motion and a second be on the table today, so there could be a vote 
today. There was a comment that the dollars did not add up.  Counsel Huttl reviewed line item amounts.  
Counsel Huttl asked if these were recommendations for All Care and stated the Board doesn’t make 
recommendations re the amounts.  Order is to recommend to All Care with specifics to get approved and 
write checks on the 100k.  Commissioner Boice said he didn’t want to lose another month waiting on 
this.  He did not want to bog down the process with bureaucracy.  Vice Chair Gold expressed it needed 
to be clearer.  Counsel Huttl said it was clear as he reviewed the applications and dollar requests and 
draft order.  Commissioner Boice make it subject to requirement they work with All Care to fulfill the 
application process.  Asking Board to move on this today.  Chair Huxley and Vice Chair Gold said it 
was only a couple weeks and not a month to wait until the next meeting.  Chair Huxley reiterated he 
wanted an agreement with All Care that would address the requests (who and how much).  Counsel 
Huttl said there could be a recommendation for All Care to write checks for the $34K in requests.  Chair 
Huxley said we can’t write checks today.  There is a process here before any checks get written.  
Counsel Huttl stated this step is only to submit to All Care and they would have to approve.    
Commissioner Boice said the need was now and that it wasn’t tough to decide.  Chair Huxley asked if 
the motion was amended.  Counsel Huttl suggested restating the motion if ready for a vote.  
Commissioner Boice motioned to Board that there be changes to the Grant re All Care’s requirements 
and changes and the second round of  project proposals that haven’t come in yet go directly to All Care 
and questioned the Board if that was understandable enough.  Vice Chair Gold seconded for discussion.  
She asked if the County would be able to get a letter from All Care repurposing the funds.  Counsel 
Huttl was questioned if he could get an agreement in a couple weeks and if All Care representative could 
put that in writing.  Counsel Huttl reviewed Boice’s motion.  Chair Huxley had a question to see if his 
understanding was that this would be back to the Board by September 6.  Counsel Huttl reiterated that 
submissions were due by August 29.  Counsel Huttl said the only written clarification from All Care 
needed would be changing scope of grant requiring all things in place prior to issuing checks.  Counsel 
Huttl said an agreement would be preferable.  Counsel Huttl stated this would be Boice’s motion.  
Counsel to draft language and make recommendations to get the ball rolling today.  
Counsel Huttl asked Commissioner Boice to restate the motion or something.  Commissioner Boice 
motioned to make recommendations to authorize county to write checks subject to conditions being met.  
Commissioner Boice didn’t say write the check previously as he felt that would be automatic after 
approval from All Care.  Chair Huxley agreed but said those items not yet submitted would need to be 
submitted prior to approval by Board.  Call for the question – Commissioner Boice yes, Vice Chair Gold 
No, Chair Huxley, no.  Vice Chair Gold moved to have agreement with All Care and paperwork in order 
by next general meeting stating all applications would need to be in too.  Chair Huxley reiterating that 
would be in two weeks.  Chair Huxley seconded the motion.  Commissioner Boice questioned if Engle’s 



 

Page 6 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

Board met monthly or quarterly.  Engle responded that they met weekly to review applications.  Motion 
passed 2-1 (Commissioner Boice opposed)  
 
Commissioner Chair Huxley recessed at 12:08P.M. for a lunch break noting the meeting would 
reconvene at 1:15P.M. 
 
The meeting was reconvened by Chair Huxley at 1:15p.m.    

 
9 ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS/APPOINTMENTS: (no a. below- following agenda) 

b. Oregon Resources Research and Education Center (ORREC) – Lease Agreement  
Chair Huxley explained the increase in lease space.  Vice Chair Gold motioned to approve the lease.  
Commissioner Boice seconded.  Motion passed 3-0. 
    

c. Title III Applications     
Commissioner Boice explained there were two submitted applications, on-going from past years.  He 
said he was of the understanding of the process through discussions with Counsel Huttl that these 
would go into a 45 day comment period, noting the applications were from Coos Forest Protective 
Association and the Sheriff’s Office.  Vice Chair Gold related that she had a call from John Brazil, 
Harbor Fire Chief and wanted to know if Commissioner Boice had received that application from 
him.  Commissioner Boice said he had not and was having issues with his email.  Vice Chair Gold 
said she would let him know Commissioner Boice did not receive emails.  Then Vice Chair Gold 
suggested Commissioner Boice calls him and follow-up with him.  Counsel Huttl suggested 
contacting Coos Curry Electric Company (County’s IT Contractor) re email issues.  Counsel Huttl 
suggested a motion to propose the 45 day initiation timeline.  Chair Huxley asked if any other 
applications were to come in, would they be subject to another 45 day comment period.  Counsel 
Huttl responded by saying yes.  Commissioner Boice questioned if the motion could include non-
included application from Harbor Fire District.  Huttl responded by saying no. Commissioner Boice 
moved as counsel presented above and start the 45 days initiation process.  Vice Chair Gold 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-0.    
 

d. Contract with Prothman for Interim County Administrator     
Chair Huxley reviewed contract for the interim position for County Administrator noting the County 
Administrator position was on slight hold based on what happens with the interim.  He stated the 
contract was a simple one. He described the contract saying Prothman can provide someone at an 
hourly rate and they would be their employee.  The County pays no benefits.  He will ask them to 
provide an original wet ink signature original document.  Commissioner Boice questioned the travel 
and housing allowance noting it seemed to be open ended.  Chair Huxley said it wouldn’t be in play.  
Counsel Huttl said it appeared to be open ended.  Chair Huxley said it was that way in packet but 
nothing required county to reimburse those expenses.  Chair Huxley further stated he told Prothman 
it is not negotiable, county wouldn’t offer it.  Gold, individual could come back and negotiate with 
County, but it was relayed to Prothman not to bother.  Boice, asked for the language to be removed. 
Chair Huxley said it could be removed.  Counsel Huttl said a motion was needed to approve as 
amended.  Chair Huxley would contact Prothman for a signed original and request to remove 
language re travel and housing.  Commissioner Boice asked when this would take effect.  Chair 
Huxley replied by saying they have individuals whom had applied now and perhaps by the end of 
the month.  Vice Chair Gold moved to approve contract to be amended as discussed (remove last 



 

Page 7 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

sentence of fees and expenses paragraph – “should temporary housing”.  Chair Huxley seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed 2-1 (Commissioner Boice opposed) 
   

e. SEIU Agreement     
Counsel Huttl said Julie Swift, Personnel, had information for the Board.  Swift told the Board that 
they don’t have a signature page from SEIU as of yet and that their Team still needed to review the 
document before signing.  Swift questioned the Board regarding signing the document not yet 
finalized by SEIU, stating they could either sign now or wait when the final paperwork is signed by 
SEIU and it would come back to another meeting.  Counsel Huttl said it would be up to the Board.  
Commissioner Boice motioned to approved the document, pending signature page to come in by 
SEIU.  Vice Chair Gold seconded the motion.  Counsel Huttl then explained he would prefer the 
original signed document by SEIU be in front of him.  Vote was called, Commissioner Boice yes, 
Vice Chair Gold and Chair Huxley opposed (1-2).  Motion did not pass.   

f. Sheriff - Justice Reinvestment Grant Support Letter (10 min) Moved to 4g  
   

10 PRESENTATIONS: 
 

11 PROCLAMATIONS / RESOLUTIONS / LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS: 
a.       Ordinance Amending County Code – General Administration – First Reading  

Chair Huxley said the County addressed this in part this morning under Consent Calendar 
scrivener’s errors.   Counsel Huttl explained this was an Ordinance for Counsel to correct 
scrivener’s errors and stated that it would take this out of Board purview, and keep on staff level.  
Chair Huxley questioned if this was because of some of the errors of late.  Counsel Huttl 
explained there was new staff and in part some errors were due to learning who does what and 
also said some errors were related to departments submitting their own numbers on documents.  
Some errors were from the past and caught during on-the-job training, noting that sometimes it 
happens.  Counsel Huttl said he had more concerns with errors that were not that kind and he 
explained the difference between scrivener’s errors and errors that change the substance of what 
was approved by the Board.  Vice Chair Gold moved to approve Counsel Huttl to read the 
ordinance by title only.  Commissioner Boice seconded the motion.  Motion Passed 3-0.  Counsel 
Huttl said this would come back for a second reading.   

   
Vice Chair Gold moved to extend meeting for another hour.  Commissioner Boice seconded.  

Passed 3-0. 
   
Counsel Huttl brought up making meeting for 2 hours with breaks, and would be coming back as 
an amendment to the rules of decorum.  Huttl noted this would limit the meetings to a 4 hour 
meeting.  Counsel Huttl, Board meetings will be 4 hours 10-noon lunch break and 1-3P.M.  
  

12 NEW BUSINESS: 
a. Contract with City of Brookings and Cal-Ore for Airport Water Line  

Counsel Huttl presented the Board with a handout of a council workshop report from City of 
Brookings.  Counsel Huttl reviewed the outline in the packet and discussed a proposed 8 inch water 
line from current main, and run due south, running under the existing airport fence to a hydrant that 
would costs approximately $45K.  Counsel Huttl said there was Grant funding for 27K leaving 18K 
to split between the County and Cal/ORE.  Chair Huxley said he recalled this started at 97K, and 



 

Page 8 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

then was down to 57K and now hearing moving the line funding costs 45K.  Counsel Huttl said City 
of Brookings is on a time crunch with the grant requesting completion by September.  Counsel Huttl 
said Dan Brattain from Cal/Ore is requesting a 1 inch main from that point to his hangar.  Counsel 
Huttl clarified there is probably more to come on this and that it might include a property 
transaction.  Chair Huxley said that unless he was physically on site there and walked this out, he 
wouldn’t have a clue to what Counsel Huttl was talking about.  Counsel Huttl said he will print out 
and share an email on this as well.  He further stated this would be discussed more in executive 
session.  Counsel Huttl said he proposes Cal/Ore pays 5K and the county pays 13K and City of 
Brookings owns the project outright and proposes getting down to real property negotiations this 
might entail.   He said he would like Board to come out of Executive Session and give Counsel 
direction, noting the window to get back to Brookings was short due to grant timelines.      

 
13 OLD BUSINESS: 

a. Adoption of  Emergency Management Coordinator Job Description  
Swift said this job description had been reviewed by the Board in July and this had been waiting on 
the supervisory clarification.  She said the Sheriff agreed to maintain the supervisory role.  Vice 
Chair Gold moved to approve.  Commissioner Boice seconded the motion.  Motion passed 3-0.   

b. Letter to SWOCC re Acquisition for Brookings Head Start Building, Per Block Grant Terms  
Counsel Huttl said the topic was one of needing Board action saying the Board asked Counsel Huttl 
to inspect, answer questions, hold a work session, and bring the items back to Board.  He reviewed 
the initial acquisition process, stating the above was part of that process and also involved getting an 
opinion letter from a realtor.  He shared with the Board the history behind the appraisal process and 
that he had received but was now getting the message that there was a request to have a local realtor 
give a FMV on the property or hire an appraiser as information received was way off in numbers.  
He said he would like direction from the Board how to proceed stating the process was at a point to 
move forward and either offer SWOCC, FMV or get the appraisal.  Chair Huxley shared another 
option which was to not move forward at all and return the money.  Counsel Huttl said if the 
decision was to not move forward, he would expect all grant money to be paid back, approximately 
100 K. Counsel Huttl said an offer was made to SWOCC and they refused, it would still be 
considered a failure.  Chair Huxley asked Counsel Huttl if he got that in writing.  Counsel Huttl said 
it may be in writing and he would check.   
Commissioner Boice reiterated the State does not want the County to pull out suggesting 
approaching SWOCC and show them both appraisals and work from there.  He thinks SWOCC 
would be willing to look at a lower amount than the 315K approved in the grant.  Commissioner 
Boice wants another value opinion to be done and feels it is premature to discuss returning the 
money.  Commissioner Boice feels the work Counsel/ORCCA had done had moved the process to 
top of hill and was getting it in order.  Chair Huxley said he had materials to discuss and present 
information he had obtained.   
Chair Huxley said he would read (highlights) and then put documents up on the screen. (Memo from 
Chair Huxley to Counsel Huttl).   Discussion from last meeting: Scenarios with City of Brookings – 
Brookings had turned down the grant application, second phase, first phase was that ORCCA was 
unable to be acceptable as their entity was structured to receive grant money from the state.  ORCCA 
approached county, county said yes.  Chair Huxley contacted city manager of Brookings.  In 2012, 
they had been invited to participate as middle person for funding.  In March, 2013 they 
recommended to cease participation. Chair Huxley said he doesn’t put this out to be snarky (see 
handout – Council Agenda Report – Tom reads entire report).  Chair Huxley to put on the screen to 



 

Page 9 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

share with everyone.    (Chair Huxley reviewed the second paragraph).   Chair Huxley said property 
should have been inspected prior to even moving forward on the project.  5 people inspected but 
none were “inspectors”.  Chair Huxley said the comments by Hanson were “mind boggling”.  Chair 
Huxley questioned how the permits were even received to operate a business out of there and 
questioned if the building had deteriorated that fast. He said the county would be liability if an 
accident happened.  Reference to page 2:  Chair Huxley said direction had been given for Counsel 
Huttl to contact the State and asked if that happened.  He said the City of Brookings had been 
prudent, thorough.  and then walked away.  He said he had heard SWOCC had other interested 
buyers.    Email from Milliman, review of agenda report read earlier by Chair Huxley.  Curry 
Coastal Pilot article.  Email from Lehman March 19, 2013 (Chair Huxley reads).  “those are my 
comments.  I think we need to pull the plug on the project”.  Commissioner Boice questioned if 
Hanson knew if the Fire Marshall had been in the building.  Chair Huxley said he didn’t hear 
anything from him on that.  Chair Huxley said he called him yesterday.  Commissioner Boice 
clarified that we inherited this project and that there are 60 kids that need our help.  He wanted to 
know if Chair Huxley was recommending immediately shutting the building down concurring that 
he thought Chair Huxley made reasonable points.   Chair Huxley said shutting down Head Start was 
not the issue, but he said he wouldn’t let children be in the building with dangling electrical wires 
and couldn’t see why Counsel or anyone would let people be in the building.  Chair Huxley said if 
he was the Fire Marshall he would shut it down.  Chair Huxley reiterated this was not the point in 
the presentation.  Commissioner Boice said he believed we can fix this and it involved the 
community.  He stated he would not be in favor of shutting down as a commissioner or citizen.  He 
further stated Head Start serves an incredible purpose.  Eric brought it up so we would all know what 
we were dealing with.  Vice Chair Gold said personally the county is not running the Head Start.  
Gold said to her there were three main concerns: One – administering it, could be solved with an 
administrator coming on; Two – asbestos report/thorough inspection before purchasing; Three – 
getting nothing and taking on all the responsibility of it.  Counsel said he wanted to respond.  He 
said he does grasp the concept of the project.  Counsel Huttl said that didn’t need to be said.  He said 
all along he had presented the options to the Board.  Chair Huxley said but Counsel indicated he 
wanted the Board to move forward with the project.  Boice, he didn’t say he wanted to do the 
project.  He was thorough and rolled up his sleeves and did a good job.  Counsel Huttl said he did 
recommend going forward at that time.  Today presented additional materials re the acquisition and 
that had created a cause to pause.  Regardless of the information presented and discussed, Counsel 
Huttl recommended hearing from Mike Lehman, ORCCA who was in the audience.     
Mr. Lehman, from ORCCA came before the Board noting he was leery about coming before the 
Board.  He said the building was shut down for the summer now.  He indicated he was disappointed 
in the disarray of the building, also indicating confidence that it would be up to standards when kids 
came back.  He said the great thing about the project was that it was old and no-one takes 
responsibility; no-one is still here that had been initially involved in the five or six-year process.  
Federal grant, administered by state agency, monitored by a non-profit (CCD), county acquisition of 
building, business to help entire county.  The ultimate beneficiary is the City of Brookings, Home 
for Head Start brand new building.   Great scenario of “nobody’s fault, to “everybody’s” fault.  We 
are here today, in this process.  New architect lined up, already drawing up plans, which ORCCA 
would be on the hook for.   If this project was starting today, he would say run and hide.  But now on 
the hook for the architect and it’s already in mid-stream.  Not been pretty, but understands concerns.  
Vice Chair Gold asked Mr. Lehman how he would suggest solving this problem noting she was not 
against  



 

Page 10 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

Head Start.  She said she would like to see if we can overcome these problems and push through.  
Lehman’s response:  1) high degree of comfort with architect; 2) working with Hanson and Counsel 
Huttl; 3) Lehman didn’t know his role, needs to be more engaged; 4) people in place to do this; 5) 
Counsel Huttl understand the complexities; 6) Doesn’t know if State will want repaid; 7) possible 
black mark from State re future grants and funding, even with ORCCA.  Vice Chair Gold voiced 
concerns about procuring the building and requests having a total inspection with an asbestos 
abatement.  It was clarified that abatement had been performed by SWOCC two years ago.  Chair 
Huxley said there were other issues the City of Brookings raised, that he did not know.  Chair 
Huxley said 150K is more like what the county is out.  Lehman asked Chair Huxley if he was 
proposing a new contract between Curry County and ORCCA and CCD, and that he would be 
willing to look at that, if a new agreement could be created.  The question was did the County go 
forward or not, and if so with or without a renegotiated contract.  Lehman said the City of Brookings 
might have exaggerated their costs a bit.  He said the County was on the hook for architectural fees 
and that ORCCA is on hook for that too.  Lehman would be hesitant to do that, maybe not even 
financially.  Lehman can find “people” to task with projects.  Chair Huxley wants to see things in 
simple language so we are clear exactly where we are.  Chair Huxley doesn’t feel he should be 
raising these issues because he is not an attorney.  Lehman fairly confident we can work out a MOU 
that reduces everyone’s risk noting we all were sitting here in mid-stream and trying to keep this 
going.  We will do everything to make everyone happy.  Commitment is to make this happen.  Chair 
Huxley doesn’t feel we need to do anything further.  Vice Chair Gold suggested getting another 
realistic evaluation of the property (FMV).  Lehman would go to bat for the college.  Doubt’s they 
(SWOCC) will come down to the lower price.  Chair Huxley SWOCC has a responsibility to their 
taxpayers too.  ORCCA has a lease on the property as well.  Chair Huxley, has anyone asked them?  
How much?  Lehman, said they expressed they had inquiries.  Chair Huxley doesn’t cost anything to 
ask.  Counsel Huttl, heard Reel is a teacher at the college, possible conflict.  Need to get another 
realtor opinion letter.  (Handout from Counsel Huttl from Hanson) – Abatement letter (Koos).  
Counsel Huttl, reads language from grant re not complying and fulfilling.  Counsel Huttl wouldn’t 
expect they’d put it in writing again.  Lehman Grant scoring is based on full completion of a grant – 
could affect future grants.  Counsel Huttl, previous county decision makers decided to move 
forward, now county needs to decide whether to move forward or not.  Gold, suggests getting the 
two lawyers in the room to create a MOU, creating less risk for both parties and possibly move 
forward.  Counsel Huttl, the idea of a MOU would be to transfer risk from county to ORCCA. Chair 
Huxley said there was no need to move forward if there were increased losses to the county.  Vice 
Chair Gold moved Lehman and Counsel Huttl work together to come up with written statement to 
lessen risk to county, and CCD, and get another real estate appraisal.  Commissioner Boice 
seconded.  Vice Chair Gold – two appraisals so far apart.  Chair Huxley, reason for getting a real 
appraisal.  Cost?  Wouldn’t that suffice?  Would be much more thorough than yet another letter from 
a realtor.  Lehman would be willing to share in the appraisal cost.  Part of the agreement (MOU) 
between Lehman and Counsel Huttl would be to get an appraisal (amended motion instead of 
another real estate appraisal (which meant another letter from a real estate office).  Commissioner 
Boice seconded amended.  Koos analysis report – Boice.  Chair Huxley, prudent to address. Motion 
passed 3-0.   
Counsel Huttl said there was a need for another motion on time of meeting to extend meeting for 
another hour.  Vice Chair Gold moved, Commissioner Boice seconded.  Motion passed 3-0.   



 

Page 11 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

c. Brookings Head Start Architect Contract with Woods Vice Chair Gold moved to continue 
indefinitely, the above agenda item, this agenda item and the ORCCA Architect Agenda item below.   
Chair Huxley seconded the motion.  Motion passed 2-1.  (Commissioner Boice opposed)   

d. Contract between County and ORCCA re Architect Expenses (See motion above by Gold) 
Break at 3:30 – 3:45 
Meeting reconvened at 3:45A.M.  

 
14 COMMISSIONER UPDATES / LIAISON & DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORTS: 

a. Port Orford Council Meetings (email) (Port Orford requesting a Commissioner attend their 
city Council Meetings.) Commissioner Boice plans to attend meeting tomorrow.  Chair Huxley 
would like to set up a rotating calendar (similar to Management Meeting rotating calendar) for this 
particular request.   

b. Coos-Curry Housing Authority Commissioner Liaison Chair Huxley asked the Board if they 
wished to defer for future discussion.  Vice Chair Gold said she doesn’t know enough about it.  
Commissioner Boice said he is learning about it.  He said he has two important meetings tomorrow 
in the Coos Bay area and would possibly stop by CCHA if he had time and would then report back 
to the Board.   
Emergency Declaration Eclipse (ADDED agenda item) Commissioner Boice said he had a 
resolution re declaring an emergency for the eclipse.  He Expressed there would be a lot of travelers 
going through here on 101 and that he wanted to bring this before the Board due to the anticipated 
approximate two million extra visitors to visit Oregon during this time.  He said if the County would 
declare a state of emergency, and if there were demands/constraints on county, we could possibly 
receive resources.  Counsel Huttl reiterated if the County declared an emergency, then the governor 
declares an emergency and opens the door to possible funding.  And Counsel Huttl said the 
Governor already declared one on the 14th.  He said he had worked with Commissioner Boice on this 
yesterday noting the map was borrowed from another entity.  Vice Chair Gold suggested putting the 
information, particularly regarding “not going blind” on the County Website.  Vice Chair Gold 
motioned to approve resolution with the resolution from the Governor as well.  Commissioner Boice 
seconded. Vice Chair Gold reiterated putting the material on the website.  Motion passed 3-0. 

c. Community Development Activity Report  
Vice Chair Gold said she appreciated getting these reports.  Commissioner Boice said he concurred.  
Chair Huxley commented on the 101 ODOT/Marijuana parking lots/facilities reference.  18 building 
code violations received.  He said the Code Enforcement position was still in process.  Chair Huxley 
said they were working on updating job descriptions.  When the position begins, hopefully will see a 
decrease in dumping, etc.…Vice Chair Gold said she had a call from a citizen dumping raw sewage 
into the Chetco River.  Vice Chair Gold said this was upsetting because it affects everyone’s water, 
not just her property.  Counsel Huttl questioned if these complaints were being forwarded to the 
appropriate places, stressing the county employees Ben Cannon from Curry Community Health at 
.25%, and felt he needed to be in the loop as well.   

d. Surveyor Monthly Activity Report     
Vice Chair Gold again said she appreciated the Board getting these.  Commissioner Boice concurred.    

e. Back to School Info for Brookings (Flyer)  Information only (No discussion) 
 
Vice Chair Gold – comments:  Health meeting tomorrow at 6:00.  She said a lot of work had been 
done to pull this meeting together.  She is asking the Board to be appointed to the Committee/Panel 
as well as take the County’s Tascam recorder to the meeting. Commissioner Boice said he had same 



 

Page 12 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

request and asked if both could be appointed.  Vice Chair Gold said there was only one opening.  
Commissioner Boice said he was born in this county and this topic was very personal for him.  He 
also said he wanted to make a couple introductions at the meeting (Krieger) and Les Balsinger. 
Commissioner Boice said he respected the effort Vice Chair Gold had put out, but that he also had a 
noteworthy record with this whole issue.  He further stressed the importance to the people in the 
south county who elected him and couldn’t understand why both couldn’t be appointed.  Chair 
Huxley motioned to appoint Vice Chair Gold to the one position that was available.  Vice Chair 
Gold seconded the motion.  Commissioner Boice rebutted with “that’s the decision”?  Vice Chair 
Gold said introducing Les was part of the meeting but stating as far as Krieger he had not been a part 
of the procedure.  Vice Chair Gold said the people who would be introduced were mainly people 
introduced in the healthcare process that led up to the meeting.  Vice Chair Gold said utilizing time 
wisely was very important as this was limited to approximately two hours and the focus to stay on 
task was important.  Commissioner Boice questioned who had decided on the panel and the format 
structure.  Vice Chair Gold said it was asked of each entity to recommend two people, city two 
people, state representative and a facilitator.  Vice Chair Gold again stressed the process was a lot of 
work.  Commissioner Boice asked if Wiley was on the panel.  Vice Chair Gold said she was.  
Commissioner Boice expressed he was looking for a change of heart.  Vice Chair Gold said this was 
about everyone working together (the Team).  Motion passed 3-0.  Vice Chair Gold had another 
comment.  She asked to borrow the recorder (Tascam).  Chair Huxley said “absolutely”.  Counsel 
Huttl asked if Counsel was expected to be present.     Chair Huxley said it was being recorded.  
Counsel Huttl said he was asking to be excused.  Vice Chair Gold said he could be excused.    
 
Commissioner Boice comments: - None. 
Chair Huxley Comments:  Chair Huxley said he had just one item and it was a question for 
Commissioner Boice.  On the August 2nd (gen. meeting), toward the end of the meeting (discussing 
salary positions) he recalls a document that Commissioner Boice handed him during the meeting and 
then the document was given to John Jezuit, for the record.  Chair Huxley said there were no 
documents in the supplemental folder and after checking with Jezuit, he indicated he didn’t end up 
with any documents.  Commissioner Boice said he should be compensated for the personal insults 
and didn’t remember handing Chair Huxley the document during the meeting.       

.   
15 EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

ORS 192.660 (2) (e) To conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to 
negotiate real property transactions  
Counsel Huttl indicated there were two topics on for Executive Session, stating the follow up re the 
water line with City of Brookings and possible real property transaction.    
 
Chair Huxley moved to go into Executive Session at 4:16P.M.  Carl King, a member of the Nesika 
Beach Ophir Water District Board said he had a comment prior to the Board going into Executive 
Session.  He said they have over 500 customers and there is only one source of water.  It was a well 
along the Rogue River adjacent to property owned by county.  He said the District was in the eighth year 
of an eleven year contract.  He said there was interest in a lot the county owns that would protect the 
rights to the well.  He said there had been concerns of contamination coming from ground level and 
would like to make sure there would be no use of that land that could contaminate the well.  He further 
stated that purchasing this property would protect their rights.  He said they could fence it off.  Vice 
Chair Gold asked how much property was being considered?   King said the Director had spoken with 



 

Page 13 of 13 
General Meeting 
August 16, 2017 

 
 

Counsel Huttl.  Commissioner Boice asked if Counsel Huttl was working with Pat Cox.  King said he 
was.   
 
4:20 P.M. into ES. 
 
4:53P.M. out of Executive Session.  Vice Chair Gold motioned for Counsel Huttl to proceed as directed 
in Executive Session.   Commissioner Boice Seconded.  Motion passed 3-0.  
 

 
16 ADJOURN: 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:55P.M.   
 

 
 Approved this ____________day of ____________________, 2017. 
 
 
 
        Curry County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Thomas Huxley, Chair 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Sue Gold, Vice Chair 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________ 
John Huttl, County Counsel  



MINUTES 

Curry County does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities and all public meetings are 
held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48 hours advance 
notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 

 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
GENERAL MEETING 

Wednesday, May 3, 2017 – 10:00 A.M. 
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 
www.co.curry.or.us  

 
AGENDA 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public.  
For public comment, a completed speaker’s slip must be submitted prior to start of the meeting.  

 
All times are AM unless otherwise noted. 

 
Present: Chair Huxley, Vice Chair Gold, Commissioner Boice, County Counsel Huttl, County 
Accountant Louise Kallstrom Minute Clerk Jezuit 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & 10:00 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

         10:02 Huxley  Speaker slips? 4 
 

2. AGENDA AMENDMENTS 
A. Order Reappointing 8 Members to the Coos Curry Douglas (CCD) Business Development 

Corporation Board of Directors 
10:03 Boice Discussion move from 6B to item 7 
10:03 Gold 6C move to item 7 
10:04 Huttl Late submittal CCD Appointments 
10:05 Huxley item 2A move to consent calendar 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
10:05 Motion by Gold. 2nd  Boice.  Approve agenda.   Carried unanimously 

 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Budget Committee Meetings Schedule May 15 – 19 
B. General Meeting of May 17, 2017 moved to May 24, 2017 
10:08 Huxley covered 4A & 4B 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 minutes per person; 30 minute limit for all public comment) 

10:10 Huxley 3 public comments 
10:10 Dave Barnes Take care of Indian Creek fish hatchery on Jerry’s Flat Road. 200 volunteers.  
3,000 hours annually.  Do fishing derby.  3rd graders came to Arizona pond to learn to fish. Special 
Needs Adults (SNAP) program. Hosting National resources day at hatchery. All 4th graders from Gold 
Beach and Port Orford.  

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 2 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

10:12 Barnes Need to reapply to Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) to get extension on 
permit. Wants letter of support from Board of Commissioners. Refresh letter written 10 years ago.  
Hoping Board of Commissioners will write similar letter this year.  
10:13 Gold Sounds like a good cause 
10:14 Boice Great facility  
10:14 Gold same man, John Weber in charge? 
10:15 Barnes Yes. He’s the step biologist with ODFW. 
10:15 Huxley will you Boice, take lead to write letter?  
10:15 Boice Yes 
10:15 Britt Boice Want to pass on information received from Oregon Health Sciences University 
(OHSU) Seminar Creating a Positive Work Environment for Safety and Health. In Wilsonville.  $30 
registration for any government agency fee vs instead of $60. Also offer Webinar only $20. Wants to 
make us aware of it. Keynote speaker wrote book,  The Nuture Effect. In Wilsonville, May 11th  9A – 3P 
10:18 Community Development Director Carolyn Johnson. Public workshop at Floras Lake on April 
27. Share outcome of Community workshop. Not a board meeting. At Langlois Lions Club. Pacific High 
School helped facilitate meeting. The purpose to fulfill directive from last Board of Commissioners 
seeking community input about Floras Lake lands north and south of Boice-Cope park. More 
information available in coming days.  Anybody want to be added to E-Mail list?  
10:19 Huttl Staff reports like this are better to be Agenda Item 12.  
10:20 Boice Makes sense 
10:20 Huttl Limit public to 3 minutes, better to have staff reports in 12. 
 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of the 14th and 15th Amendments to Oregon Health Authority (OHA) Agreement for Public 
Health Financing (5 min)  

B. Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Gold Beach to Provide Tourism Administrative Services 
to Curry County.  (5 min)  

C. Payroll Distribution change for Sheriff John Ward  (10 min) 
D. Amendment to Daywireless Tower Site Management Agreement (4 min)  
10:21 Huxley 6A & 6D Motion to approve Consent Calendar as amended.  Motion by Gold   Boice 2nd  
Carried Unanimously  
10:22 Huttl filled out after meeting started. Need Board of Commissioners’ consensus. 
10:22 Boice Move to hear public comment 
10:23 Gold OK 
10:23 Huxley not OK with it. 2 commissioners are OK. Please come up.  
10:23 Bob Morrow. Wants to thank the Board of Commissioners for letting Director Johnson do such 
an amazing job. Had 100 chairs set up. Feels 150 were there. Community really wants to take a 
conservation approach. Economic benefits to Langlois would be tremendous. $50,000 annually at park, 
due to beauty of Floras Lake.  Community encouraging Board of Commissioners to deeply consider 
conservation approach. Citizens are willing to help work with Board of Commissioners. 
10:25 Morrow Really are economic benefits. It won’t be home run, but will provide long term cash 
flow to County 
10:25 Boice This is a new rule. Anything we can do to open and encourage here public comment.  
10:25 Huxley  I think we followed policy and went with majority of the Board of Commissioners.  
10:26 Boice Not good for progress to have people drive 1 ½ hours  
 



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 3 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

 
7. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS/APPOINTMENTS 

6B  
10:27 Boice Another IGA w/Gold Beach No prior discussion on this. Wasn’t informed. Was in 
tourism 30 years. Question, did it get on Agenda by Wednesday, April 26?  
10:28 Huxley Scroll to page 15 for Agenda Routing Slip (AGRS) date 
10:29 Boice Special Meeting on Friday, April 28? More opportunities for us to get together, to make 
decisions, dialogue, discussion is good. 
10:30 Boice With Johnson on April 28. List of suggested projects. Came before Board of 
Commissioners. No bids process.  
10:31 Huxley IGA & Bid Process. Amount under $10,000. Item comes under consent calendar. 
Wants to discuss this whole process.  
10:32 Boice This is a bad idea. Not appropriate for our County. Stopped at City of Gold Beach.  City 
of Gold Beach Administrator Jodi Fritts in Commissioner Gold’s office today. They are under 
staffed. Tremendous controversy between County and City of Gold Beach . No agreement with 
dispatch & City of Gold Beach. Sheriff has done about everything he can do.   
10:34 Boice Does not want to give up our website to anyone. We’re trying to bring County together 
on healthcare and law enforcement.  
10:34 Boice Back to controversy. Why are we giving that up? Not in our best interests. City of Gold 
Beach got upset using County using economic development monies to develop website and turned 
County in to the State. The State ruled with the County we had proper procedure there.  We can run 
our tourism promotion through Parks. Opposed without more work involved.  Bad approach to get 
City of Gold Beach into this building. Need to discuss to make sure it’s in the best interest in 
County. Sheriff’s agreement still not signed. 
10:36 Huttl City of Gold Beach promotes tourism through City of Gold Beach. In one sense we’re 
competitor with City of Gold Beach. Does agreement address conflicts of interest if  there are 
competing dollars for City of Gold Beach under tourism.  
10:37 Johnson Noting in agreement about conflict 
10:37 Gold  Has concerns also. City of Gold Beach involved in many different areas. Promoting 
Travel Oregon. Feels comfortable with IGA after talking to Fritts. 
10:39 Boice You don’t think controversies that are well documented in the past raise some red flags? 
10:39 Gold We’re not talking about Sheriff’s agreement.  
10:40 Huxley Can’t be jumping from one topic to another. Will not comment on website. Travel 
Curry Coast was not kept up. It was inadequate. Asked by Johnson for help on website. Johnson 
did good job. 
10:41 Boice Parks department can handle website. With City of Gold Beach we have a history of 
controversy which hasn’t been repaired. Does not want to give up website. 
10:41 Gold We’re not giving up our website.  
10:41 Huttl Under agreement Johnson has oversight. Actions of City of Gold Beach are for 
authorization of Johnson’s site.  Did not read giving up website in IGA. 
10:42 Boice Lottery monies go to Economic Development. Keep county together without competing 
with cities. Wants people from Reedsport down coming here.  Requesting Board of Commissioners 
put this off, talk to Parks people. Don’t give up another $10,000. For Boice  not to know by Fri, 
April 28.  
10:44 Huxley  Huttl – mentioned there was no conflict clause. Would you suggest adding a conflict 
clause?  



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 4 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

10:44 Huttl Last IGA w/City of Gold Beach. Would be more comfortable if we had something to 
address that.  
10:45 Huxley no problem 
10:45 Gold Motion Approve IGA with inclusion of conflict clause Huxley 2nd      

10:46 Johnson wants to talk about chronology. Not pertinent to motion.  
 Call for the question:  Huxley Aye,  Gold Aye  Boice No  Carried 2-1 
 10:47 Johnson Was given to Board of Commissioners on Monday, April 24. My department is split 
between 2 Commissioners. One Commissioner for Economic Development and another 
Commissioner for Building. AGRS does not have it both Commissioners.  
10:49 Huttl  Johnson has duty to work with liaison. 
10:49 Boice Can be a little over sensitive. Have had experience in tourism with City of Gold Beach 
Fritts ignoring Boice E-Mails, visits and ignoring me today. May be why he’s a tad suspect and 
concerned. 
10:50 Huttl If Boice is liaison and working with Johnson, Boice should have a direct pipeline to 
City of Gold Beach as administrator of this contract and agreement. Boice will be able to oversee 
this.  
10:51 Gold Contract can be terminated by either party at anytime 
10:51 Huxley 1 comment. Caution not to make general accusations without backup authority 
proving those accusations. Not a good thing to get into.  
10:52 Boice Can you give one specific? 
10:52 Huxley Will review video and find three or four or more. If City of Gold Beach didn’t do 
something, give proof.  
10:53 Boice Were you aware there was conflict between City of Gold Beach and County? 
10:53 Huxley You should have that documented if you’re going to make that accusation.  
10:54 Boice  Huttl you’ve been involved with Sheriff’s department. That’s well documented. 
10:55 Boice Will do homework  and see what he can offer to the Board of Commissioners. 
10:55 Huxley Item 6C      
10:55 Gold Did some research. When someone retires from Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS), they no longer have to pay their 6%. The County is currently paying their 15.98%.  
Checked with other counties to see what their position was on paying into the pocket of retired 
person. Amount would be $1,148 per month. Other counties do not give employee PERS. Would be 
abdicating fiduciary responsibility.  Would be close to a 22% raise. 
10:57 Boice The Police Chief of Brookings gets paid substantially more. Will support this.  Huttl 
does not see this a concern legality wise. 
10:58 Gold There are several other employees here who are also retired. If we do it for one, we do it 
for others. 
10:58 Boice Not costing county anything. 
10:59 Huxley Don’t know if Sheriff has retired or not. Read in packet compensation budgeted to 
include PERS. Retired from PERS on 1/1/17.  Sheriff requests equitable distribution. Also will not 
change the base salary of Sheriff and not change the budget.  
11:00 Huxley Brings back conversation w/PERS representative, Deborah Hembree in 6/10/2013. 
How much is 2013-2015 employer contribution rate is paying for benefits employees who are no 
longer working in PERS covered positons. The answer is on a system average basis about 40% 13-
15 for Tier 1 Tier 2 employee rate is to cover unfunded liability for retired and inactive members.  
11:02 Huxley Contribution go into a separate account for all PERS members. Need this to keep 
PERS from imploding or crashing. 40% from active employees are used to pay retirees to keep 
system from not crashing.  



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 5 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

11:03 Huxley P 14 in “PERS: By the Numbers.” Document reads 68% liabilities are for employees 
not working. As a result about 40% from employees are associated with these groups. To request 
100% county contribution will result in 60% going to the particular individual. Also will increase 
rate for retirement purposes. Does not support this at all and certainly not for full amount. 
11:06 Sheriff Ward. Appointed Sheriff in 2014. Term ended 12/31/16.  Re-sworn in as elected. 
Sheriff has not had an increase. Carries most liability and most responsibility than any other county 
employee. 
11:09 Ward Gold you mentioned if we do it for one, we do it for others. That’s not true. In law 
enforcement can retire and go back to work. Last year compensation board, recommends pay 
$86,000.  Ward is elected. It’s different. Doesn’t cost county any extra money. Talked to Swift 
about it.  County department heads got pretty good raise last year. Ask Huttl for his opinion and 
help on this.  
11:09 Huttl Is it legal to do or not? Yes, it’s legal. Equitable share. It’s a pseudo–legal concept. We 
are making a contribution to PERS under Sheriff’s salary. Of that contribution 40% is for other 
employee. Did not hear Hembree say in E-Mail, does not mean I’ll only get 60%. Kallstrom can 
speak on this? This is budgeted in under Sheriff’s salary. 
11:11 Kallstrom The amount an employee gets from PERS is based on their years of service. 40% is 
unfunded liability amount. Does not have anything to do with individual account.  If everybody 
retired today, how much would not be funded? That was 40% in 2013. There is a slight amount that 
would be added to amount, the social security portion would be added.  
11:13 Huttl Did tell Sheriff this is a Board of Commissioner decision. It will be legal for Board of 
Commissioners to do this. But it is a Board of Commissioners decision 
11:14 Huxley Did you retire from PERS? 
11:14 Ward Yes 
11:14 Gold There is a law if there is a small county, then PERS people who retired can work for 
county full-time. This would be double dipping.      
11:15 Ward 3 highest year when he was a Sergeant. Chief of Brookings getting $120,000 per year.   
11:16 Kallstrom PERS retirement rules – if you retire, in most cases you can only work ½ time. If 
retire in July, can work full time.  There is a special rule, per Ward, in certain circumstances, can 
work full time & stay on PERS retire. 
11:17 Boice Take care of people who take care of us. Supports  Huttl work.   Look at list what 
Sheriff has to do, most is mandated. It is a tremendous amount of work and responsibility.   
11:19 Ward Compensation Board recommended $89,000, still at $75,000. This will not cost county 
and extra money. Wants equitable payment for what my compensation packet would be.   
11:19 Julie Swift Worked with Sheriff. Doesn’t make a difference what Curry has to contribution 
for him. It’s not illegal. Doesn’t see why Sheriff should not get the compensation. It’s been 
budgeted.  
11:20 Ward More than full time. Works 24/7. Wants a little bit of compensation for that. 
11:21 Boice Sheriff gets less than Planning Director?  
11:21 Kallstrom Too much emphasis is put on the way they came up with this payroll adjustment. 
Sheriff is asking for increasing salary that stays within budget. Pay increase does not cost Curry any 
more than he has been paid.  Really doesn’t have anything to do with PERS. This is a payroll 
adjustment based on cost savings. Confused with PERS reference.  
11:23 Ward Doesn’t care what other people get paid. 
11:23 Swift  Only 2 departments paid more than Sheriff are Roadmaster & County Counsel 
11:24 Boice My apologies to the Board. Where is Johnson in that sequence? Paid less than Sheriff? 
11:24 Swift Yes.  



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 6 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

11:24 Ward Looking at Planning Commissioner, 2 or 3 people. Sheriff has 45 people. 
11:25 Gold Should setting up pay raises be part of budget process? 
11:25 Huxley We should discuss as a pay raise. We should put it on the priority list, Huttl. 
Concerned about 40% and how it does work. Had 8 different E-Mails from Hembree. Not prepared 
at this meeting to deal with this. Deal with this as a separate during the budget process. Not prepared 
to approve at this meeting.  
11:27 Gold Look at whole thing 
11:27 Huxley And Social Security, too. 7.65% 
11:27 Ward This will not cost county anything.  
11:29 Boice Motion to approve the payroll distribution change for Sheriff Ward as discussed Boice.  
2nd  None.  Motion dies.   
11:29 Huxley Dies for lack of 2nd. Encourages to be discussed during budget meetings.  

 
  
  
 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING  
None 
 

9. PROCLAMATIONS/RESOLUTIONS/LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS 
None 
 
 

10.  NEW BUSINESS 
None 

 
11.  OLD BUSINESS 

A. Ordinance Establishing Office and Authority of County Administrator (15 min) 
11:30 Huxley  Huttl? 
11:31 Huttl Board of Commissioners directed Huttl to re-format job description. After last discussion, 2 
questions for Board of Commissioners. 2 questions -- See pages 34 & 35 of agenda packet (County 
Administrator job description). Powers and Duties of County Administrator.  Counsel nor elected 
officials not subject to County Administrator hiring firing. If one of the concepts is to streamline 
government, there would still be one big one hanging out there.  There is an advantage to Board of 
Commissioners to put County Counsel under County Administrator. The disadvantage to Board, as legal 
counsel my  rules require answering to highest authority in County. Also Board of Commissioners has 
enjoyed direct access to Huttl. With County Administrator, access would likely be changed.  No power 
over elected county officer. 
11:36 Huttl County employees boss would be County Administrator. Can be done either way. 
Commissioners Gold and Boice can hire Interim County Administrator. That person can get started on 
addressing county issues. 
11:37 Huttl Could make ordinance effected at a future date. Believes can do an Interim Acting County 
Administrator would have no powers to terminate employee except by order of the Board. Employment 
powers of County Administrator are some of the more sticky, important, common and frequent issues.  
The issues are County Administrator authority over other employees, elected officials, and Counsel. 



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 7 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

11:39 Huxley  Dave Barnes Want to comment now or later? 
11:39 Barnes Newly impaneled Board of Commissioners. Just finished 4 months in office. Major 
themes is getting someone to do the work for you. Essentially become ceremonial.  Highly disagree 
about what you’re talking about. You were all elected to run this county. Handing it off to a County 
Administrator is what you were elected for. Voters should pick who County Administrator should be. 
Has seen some horrors.   A bad administrator  is absolutely horrible. Looking at $125,000 to $150,000 to 
get a decent administrator. If  less, will get what they pay for. You were hired to handle administration. 
Thinks that you’re changing the entire way this government is run in Curry County.  
11:42 Gold Talked to many, many voters who think County Administrator would be more efficient.  
Board of Commissioners would not be figureheads. Working on policies to lead and guide the County 
and the Administrator. 
11:43 Barnes Disagrees with Gold.  
11:43 Boice Clackamas County has 9 different County Administrators in 15 years. Concern when 
positon summary says shall have control and supervision of all county departments. My vote will be this 
position, County Administrator, does not compromise Counsel. Can’t imagine being a District Attorney 
and County Administrator coming in to opportunity to be compromised to manage own people in own 
department.  Have not found any lazy employees around here. There are not any. Who’s left to manage 
here? 
11:45 Boice Re: 4/28 #8 engage SCDC to represent Curry County -- that’s Boice’s job. Do not have to 
hire someone. Legislature in session now. Will graduate County College. Afterwards will be in office 
every day. We have a skeleton staff. With Brenda Starbird, John Jezuit, and department heads have risen 
to challenge. Job description not ready. Don’t have budget for it. Don’t know how much staff will be 
needed. Has a lot of apprehension and reluctance. Sheriff lost 3 deputies to City of Brookings. I saw 
Fritts walk by & not even say hi. What are long term consequences to not pulling everyone together? 
11:49 Gold Thinks we need more continuity. Commissioners come and go. Been doing this way – isn’t 
effective..  
11:49 Huxley Asked for organizational chart.  Always started with organizational chart. Current 
structure is absolute dysfunctional from a Commissioner’s perspective. 3 elected are technically the boss 
of department heads. 3 does not work. Great part to put under 1 person. Example: 6 months ago, Huttl 
has oversight over Board of Commissioners. He has 3 bosses. Issue that arose in Board of 
Commissioners office, Huttl out, deadline, asked by Johnson to get something on agenda. ODOT.  
Huxley made management decision. Gave instructions.    
11:53 Huxley Not picking on Huttl. Just giving example to Barnes. We have run into issues w/subjects 
of grants from 2 years, 3 years 6 months ago, 5 years ago. There are 4 or 5 grants we are aware of. 
Things not done properly. It’s this dysfunctional system that creates these things. People are not held 
accountable. The order of magnitude – mentioned previously the Brookings Airport grants --is now 
minor at $60,000 compared to some other surprises we’ve run into.  
11:55 Huxley A good leader or a bad leader in any form of government. We need some to be held 
accountable.  1 person. It’s been 1 fire after another. These fires are huge liability.  Huttl is up to his 
eyeballs in these up to this point. 
11:56 Huttl And Kallstrom, too 
11:57 Huxley Commissioners will make policy decisions to look budget wise, and have time to do that. 
That what Commissioner elected to do—to make good policy decisions. Hire good people; good leaders.  
11:57  Barnes  Huttl said last workshop, frees up to high level activities. You’re abdicating most of 
your responsibility you have agreed to when you were elected to office. Have only been in office 4 
months. Have not tried to see if it works. Find it strange need arises now. Since looking at change, 
believe it should be put out to voters.  



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 8 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

11:59 Huxley Have had 2 unsuccessful home rule charter ballot measures that went out to the people. 
11:59 Huttl This is a not a vote to approve the position. A vote to direction to bring back for a future 
date to approve for today. If Board can give Huttl direction on questions to be addressed for a future 
version of this. 
12:0P1 Barnes It’s important question. Should really be put to people. 
12:01P Huxley  Boice? 
12:01P Boice  Back to Barnes. This has come up a lot. Reminded by people that will definitely hold me 
accountable.  As far as team goes, we could be different. We could not be a status quo Board of 
Commissioners. People have clearly spoken. Does not want to become glorified ribbon cutter.  Gold 
there is pro and con. We need to bring to voters to see if they want a County Administrator. 
12:03P Huxley This is a much better job description than previously. Had removed Huttl from falling 
under County Administrator, but under Board of Commissioners. Would like to see a cleaned up version 
and bring this back to the Board for further discussion in a workshop. Thinks some of the dialogue very 
good. 
12:06P Huttl Not interested in doing another workshop. Time to fish or cut bait. Not interested in doing 
another job description.  Heard can be Huttl be under Board of Commissioners. Also like an 
organization chart. Has 2 of those. Did not hear anything about administrator authority over other 
employees in departments. Needs to bring back for adoption.  Does not have much to offer. 
12:07P Boice Disagree strongly w/ Huttl.  Barnes represents a good portion of population. So County 
Administrator has not political transparency to public like we do. Huxley, you want Counsel to be under 
County Administrator as well.  
12:08P  Huxley That’s correct. 
12:08P Boice  Huttl did you say you would change #7. Would County Administrator have joint 
authority with Department heads? 
12:09P Huttl My understanding Boice have more department heads are not subordinate to County 
Administrator. 
12:10P Boice Who would not be subordinate to a County Administrator? 
12:10P Huttl Board of Commissioners.  
12:10P Huttl Would really be delegation not usurpation. Did this topic come up in your trip to Jackson 
County visit? 
12:11P Boice Has not been contacted. Boice has talked to Commissioner Roberts. Would guess she is 
very happy with County Administrator Jackson County. Have not talked to other 2 commissioners. 
12:11P Huttl Had a city manager there was 1 go to person for decisions. There is some streamlining 
with County Administrator. Grant situation is an example. No issue with current Board of 
Commissioners or past Board of Commissioners. Feels there is a benefit to having 1 person decision 
maKer. We may have been able to avoid issues with grants we are seeing. Doesn’t know if attributable 
due to lack of County Administrator or not.  
12:13P Gold Managing something with 3 people who cannot talk except in a meeting. It is not working. 
Has as a Commissioner and a Board member worked with a manager, and it works very well. As far as 
Huttl being under County Administrator , can sees pros and cons. Thinks there needs to be a go to 
person. Board of Commissioners would deal with that person 
12:15P Huttl Issue w/elected officials for District Attorney. Those are rare circumstance.  With District 
Attorney’s office, may be difficult for County Administrator to carve out District Attorney office.  
Cannot contribute  anything more for a workshop. Will bring back an ordinance. This draft would have 
County Administrator have hiring/firing authority over other county department heads. Decision would 
be May 24. Wants to conclude this for today. 
12:17P Boice For another workshop 



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 9 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

12:17P Gold OK without another workshop.   
 
      

 
 
 

12.  PRESENTATIONS TO THE BOARD 
A. Air Service Proposals - Crescent City, CA (5 min)  
12:18P Huxley Crescent City Del Norte County. Was a liaison to Brookings Airport. Was made board 
member to Del Norte county. Major expansion to Del Notre airport $15,000,000. Put out bids for 
contract for air service. They receive significant subsidies.  
12:20P Huxley 2 proposals from Peninsula Airways (PenAir) 2 flights per day to Portland & Boutique 
Air. 6 possible scenarios. Flights to Oakland airport. Pen Air 3 flights to Portland and 2 flights to Oaklnd 
in 2 different directions. Flight statistics. Enplanement and deplanements. Statistics for paid passengers 
only. Magic number for airports in rural communities is 10,000,  then can receive a $1,000,000 grant. 
Did not make it in 2016.  If they do not make it, drops grant from $1,000,000 to $150,000. Statistics and 
graphs of Boutique air quite impressive to Huxley. Their passenger count increases are phenomenal.  
12:24P Huxley 1 comment Boutique felt very comfortable if chosen, they would be able to reach 10,000 
passengers. Asked what’s absolutely confident? Response surprised Huxley.  
12:25P Huxley we looked at what happens if you go just 1 direction. Absolutely sure. If we’re not 
making that goal, will pay $500,000.  More flights, smaller aircraft. It will work.  
12:26P Huttl Hand out from newspaper 
12:27P Huxley Asked 2 managers how does public notice work? That’s how the handout ended up in 
The Pilot.  
12:28P Huttl Need motion to continue meeting.   
12:29P Gold Are you looking for us to endorse?  
12:29P Huxley No. Is one of 7 votes. 
12:29P Gold Did get concerns from people because costs and luggage about Boutique no luggage 
charge. Concern about putting luggage on another flight.  
12:30P Boice Motion to extend meeting 7.5 minutes    Gold  2nd  Carried Unanimously 
 

 
 

13.  COMMISSIONER UPDATES/LIAISON & DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORTS 
12:31P Boice 3 bills in State House.  House Bill (HB) 2363 2% tax to back to assessor. Counties can opt 
out.   HB 3435. Secure road fund loans narrowed down to Klamath, Curry, and Yamhill Counties HB  
3374 doing pretty well.  Will talk on that later. Also feels it’s important to get an appraisal of 500 acres 
Floras Lake land if we do swap with State..  
12:32P Boice Talked about fire school in Portland. Don Kendall believes we can update out fire plan.  
Concerned about fire on May 31.  On May 31st working with Huttl to get Darrin Neavoll, ODOT, from 
Roseburg  at workshop. It’s about Brookings to Port Orford condition of Hwy 101. 

 
 

14.  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

15.  ADJOURN  12:36P 
 



MINUTES 
General Meeting of the Board of Commissioners – 05/3/2017 

Page 10 

All Commissioners’ meetings are held in accessible locations. Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 
48 hours advance notification. Please call 541.247.3296 if you have questions regarding this notice. 
 

Approved this ____________day of ____________________, 2017. 
 
 
 
        Curry County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Thomas Huxley, Chair 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Sue Gold, Vice Chair 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________ 
John Huttl, County Counsel  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



To Honorable Mayor Jake Pieper 

City Council Bill Hamilton, Brent Hodges, Roger Thompson, and Dennis Triglia 

City Manager Gary Milliman 

Director of Public Works and Development Services Paul Stevens 

 

Curry County would like to thank the City of Brookings, its Mayor, City Council, City Manager and Public 
Works Director for their work in extending the water main to the airport to allow placement of a fire 
hydrant and two service water meters on the grounds.   

This action would not have been possible without the efficient and effective actions on the part of City 
Manager and staff in administering the Economic Development Grant.   

The efforts on the part of City of Brookings management and staff have allowed the County to return 
water service to the airport grounds, and improve the safety of the airport with the installation of a fire 
hydrant.   

We look forward to future opportunities to work with the City of Brookings to improve economic 
opportunities for the benefit of our citizens, our local commercial enterprises, our life safety service 
providers, and visitors from outside the area. 

Thanks again. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Curry County Board of Commissioners.  

 

Chair 

 

Vice Chari 

 

Commissioner   



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: ODFW/Sixes River Fishing Access in lieu of tax certification 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/4/17 DEPARTMENT:   Assessment TIME NEEDED:        
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Jim KolenPHONE/EXT: 3257 TODAY’S DATE: 9/21/17   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Taxes due for a portion of Sixes River access by ODFW 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Letter 
(1)Copy of letter to ODFW     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other  Mail letter and tax statement to ODFW.            
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: (Select) 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us






CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 03-02-2016  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of the 17th Amendments to OHA Agreement for Public 
Health Financing #148007 with signature authority to the CCH CEO, Ken Dukek. 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/04/17 DEPARTMENT:   CCH TIME NEEDED:  5 minutes 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Ken DukekPHONE/EXT: 373-8012 TODAY’S DATE: 9/25/17   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: This amends the grant to increase awards in Woman, Infant 
and Child category services as well as School Based Mental Health total change $38,760 added award. 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Agreement 
(1)#148007 - 17th Amendment     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Adminstrative Actions 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Amends grant for health services funding receipt   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Susan Gold    Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

148007 TLH AMENDMENT #17 PAGE 1 OF 5 PAGES 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as 

Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 

alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 

or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

 

Agreement #148007 

SEVENTEENTH AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 This Seventeenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2015-2017 Intergovernmental Agreement for 

the Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2015 (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the 

State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Curry County (“County”), and 

Curry Community Health (“CCH”), the entity designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health 

Authority for Curry County. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, OHA, County and CCH wish to add the initial financial assistance award for fiscal year 

2018 to the existing Financial Assistance Award for Fiscal years 2015 through 2017 set forth in Exhibit C of the 

Agreement; 

WHEREAS, OHA, County and CCH wish to modify the Exhibit J information required by 2 CFR 

Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Exhibit C “Financial Assistance Award”, Section 1 only is amended to add the Financial Assistance 

Award for the period Fiscal Year 2018 for the period of July 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 as set 

forth in Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment A must be 

read in conjunction with Section 4 of Exhibit B, entitled “Explanation of Financial Assistance Award” 

of the Agreement. 

2. Exhibit J “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200” is amended to 

add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in Attachment B, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. CCH shall perform all the Program Elements listed in Exhibit B, shall comply with all the terms of a 

Provider, and shall be considered to have entered into a Provider Contract by execution of this 

Amendment.  

4. County shall perform all statutorily required governance actions of an LPHA. 

5. County represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of County set forth in 

Section 2 of Exhibit E of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if 

made on the date hereof. 

6. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 

the Agreement. 

7. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.  

The parties expressly agree to and ratify the Agreement as herein amended. 



2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

148007 TLH AMENDMENT #17 PAGE 2 OF 5 PAGES 

8. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 

shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 

to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 

9. This Amendment becomes effective on the date of the last signature below. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 

below their respective signatures. 

APPROVED: 

STATE OF OREGON ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY (OHA) 

By:   

Name: /for/ Lillian Shirley, BSN, MPH, MPA  

Title: Public Health Director  

Date:   

CURRY COUNTY (COUNTY OR LPHA) 

By:   

Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

 

CURRY COMMUNITY HEALTH (CCH) 

By:   

Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Agreement form group-approved by D. Kevin Carlson, Assistant Attorney General, Tax and Finance 

Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on July 25, 2017, copy of 

email approval in Agreement file. 

OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

 

Reviewed by:  

Name: Mai Quach (or designee) 

Title: Program Support Manager 

 

Date:   

 

 



2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

148007 TLH AMENDMENT #16 PAGE 3 OF 5 PAGES 

ATTACHMENT A 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD 

Award Period July 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 

 
      State of Oregon Page 1 of 2

 1) Grantee    2)  Issue Date   This Action
Name:  Curry County Health Department  August 24, 2017     AMENDMENT

        FY2018

Street:  PO Box 810    3)  Award Period
City:  Gold Beach      From July 1, 2017 Through December 31, 2017

State:  OR Zip Code: 97444

 4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved
Previous Increase/ Grant

Program Award (Decrease) Award

6,171 6,171

   ( e )

34,978 34,978

   ( d )

29,075 29,075

47,324 47,324

   ( i )

46,355 3,760 50,115

   ( b,c,j )

5,248 5,248

   ( a )

1,802 1,802

   ( g )

2,814 2,814

   ( g,h )

6,564 6,564

   ( g,h )

961 961

0 0

4,370 4,370

   PROG.
    COST    APPROV

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

PE 01  State Support for Public Health

PE 12 Public Health Emergency Preparedness

PE 13 Tobacco Prevention & Education

PE 27 Prescription Drug Overdose Prevention

PE 40 Women, Infants and Children

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 41  Reproductive Health Program

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 42 MCH/Child & Adolescent Health -- General Fund

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 42 MCH-TitleV -- Child & Adolescent Health

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 42 MCH-TitleV -- Flexible Funds

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 42 MCH/Perinatal Health -- General Fund

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 42 Babies First

   e) $6,171   Award amount is estimated for the period from 7/1/17-9/30/17.  OHA/PHD has not yet

PE 43 Immunization Special Payments

 5)  FOOTNOTES:
   a) $5,248  Award amount is estimated for July - December 2017. OHA/PHD has not received the Notice

      of Award for the title X funding. Adjustment might be needed once the Notice of Award is received.

   b) The July-September 2017 grant is $26,937  ; $5,387  must be expended for Nutrition Education. 

      $1,160  must be expended for Breastfeeding Promotion.

   c) The October-December grant is $23,177  ; $4,635  must be expended for Nutrition Education. 

      $1,160  must be expended for Breastfeeding Promotion.

   d) $34,978  Award amount is estimated for July-December 2017. OHA/PHD has not received the Notice of Award

      for funding.  Adjustments might be needed once Notice of Award has been received by OHA/PHD.

     ment with a purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

     PROGRAM         ITEM DESCRIPTION

     received the funding amount for Fiscal Year 2018. Adjustments might be needed once the

     funding is received by OHA/PHD.

  6) Capital Outlay Requested in This Action:
     Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay.  Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equip-

 
 



2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

148007 TLH AMENDMENT #16 PAGE 4 OF 5 PAGES 

 
      State of Oregon Page 2 of 2

 1) Grantee    2)  Issue Date   This Action
Name:  Curry County Health Department  August 24, 2017     AMENDMENT

        FY2018

Street:  PO Box 810    3)  Award Period
City:  Gold Beach      From July 1, 2017 Through December 31, 2017

State:  OR Zip Code: 97444

 4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved
Previous Increase/ Grant

Program Award (Decrease) Award

30,000 30,000

0 35,000 35,000

11,222 11,222

   ( f )

    TOTAL 226,884 38,760 265,644

   PROG.
    COST    APPROV

Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

PE 44 School Based Health Centers 

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 44 School Based Health Centers - Mental Health Expansion

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 50 Safe Drinking Water Program

      carryover funds). Funds are for the period 7/1/17-8/31/17 and need to be spent by 8/31/17.

 5)  FOOTNOTES:
   f) $11,222   Award amount is estimated for July-December 2017.  OHA/PHD has not yet received the

     Notice of Award for the funding. Adjustments might be needed once the Notice of Award

     is received by OHA/PHD.

   g) Funds will not be shifted between categories or fund types.  The same program may be funded

       by more than one fund type, however, federal funds may not be used as match for other federal

       funds (such as Medicaid).

   h) Funds for the MCH Title V programs for the period of 7/1/17-9/30/17 must be spent by 9/30/17.

   i) $47,324  ($15,916, 2/12 of $95,500 Year 2 funds and $31,408, one-third of $94,226 Year 1 

     ment with a purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

     PROGRAM         ITEM DESCRIPTION

   j) The July-September portion must be spent by September 30th, 2017.  $3,528  is the year-end

       one-time funding adjustment.  $232  is the second fresh fruit and veggies grant adjustment.

  6) Capital Outlay Requested in This Action:
     Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay.  Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equip-

 
 



2015-2017 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

148007 TLH AMENDMENT #16 PAGE 5 OF 5 PAGES 

ATTACHMENT B 

Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 
PE 40: WIC NSA

Federal Award Identification 

Number(FAIN):

Federal Award Date: 02/01/17

Performance Period:

Federal Awarding Agency:

CFDA Number: 10.557

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Award: 24,757,038     
Project Description: WIC Program 

Awarding Official: 

Indirect Cost Rate: 16.41%

Research And Development(Y/N): N

Agency/Contractors Name DUNS 

Total Initial 

FY18 Award

Base award 

adjustment

Increase Year-

end one-time 

funding, 

$7/part.

Increase 2nd 

fresh fruit and 

veggie grant

Revised July-

Sept 2017 

Award

Of the Grant, 

this must be 

spent on 

Nutrition Ed

Of the Grant, 

this must be 

spent on BF 

Promotion

Oct 2017 - Jun 

2018 Grant

Of the Grant, 

this must be 

spent on 

Nutrition Ed

Of the Grant, 

this must be 

spent on BF 

Promotion

Revised FY18 

Award

CURRY 042631270 46,355$             -$              3,528.00$      232.00$          26,937$         5,387$              1,160$              23,177$            4,635$             1,160$            50,115$         

12-3510-0-1-605

10/01/17-9/30/18

Department of Agriculture/Food and Nutrition Service

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women Infants 

Debra Whitford Debbie.Whitford@fns.usda.gov

 
 

 

 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 03-02-2016  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Notice of upcoming vital records fee change. Request to be involved 
in the county rate setting public meeting.  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/04/17 DEPARTMENT:   CCH TIME NEEDED:  5 minutes 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Ben Cannon PHONE/EXT: 541-373-7011 TODAY’S DATE: 
9/25/17   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Vital records fees will be changing starting January 2018. The 
fee for the first copy of a vital record will remain the same, however, the fee for each additional copy will 
be $25 ($5 increase). The county must charge the same fee as the state.  
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Notice 
(1) 2018 County Fee Schedule     
(2) Vital Records Fee Change FAQs 
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Adminstrative Actions 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Notice of future fee increase   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Susan Gold    Yes  No  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           



2018 Vital Records Fee Schedule 
 

Not all services shown. See rules for complete information. 
 
 

Services Current Fee 

New fee Jan. 1, 

2018 

Fee collected by 

Birth Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 County & State 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 County & State 

Death Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 County & State 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 County & State 

Marriage (& ORDP) Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 State only 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 State only 

Divorce (dissolution of ORDP) Certificates 

-- First Copy 
$25.00 $25.00 State only 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 State only 

Expedited Order $7.00 $7.00 * State only 
Amendments $35.00 $35.00 State only 

Certificate Replacement Fee ** $5/per replacement $5/per replacement County & State 

Verification Fee $10/first 5 for free $10/first 5 for free State only 

Certified copy of birth record requested as 

image (no discounts for additional copies) 

 
                   $30.00 

 
$30.00 

 
State only 

Pre-adoption birth record $30.00 $30.00 State only 

Contact Preference form $25.00 $25.00 State only 

Amendment expedite fee $30.00 $30.00 State only 

 

* County can charge this fee if orders are submitted via the Internet or phone with a credit card and are processed within 3 business days. 

** One free certified copy for birth records; no replacement fee if only medical amendment for death records. 

 

 
Revised 5/25/2017 



Change in fees for vital records effective 
January 1, 2018

What is the change in fees? The fee for a certificate will remain $25. Fees for additional 
copies of a record will now also be $25. For more information and for a list of fees see 
www.healthoregon.org/feechanges

What are vital records? Vital records are the legal registration of a vital event. A vital 
event is a birth, marriage, divorce or death. Every vital event that occurs in Oregon must 
be recorded and permanently stored with the Center for Health Statistics, also known as 
Oregon Vital Records. Certified copies of the record are printed on special paper and are 
known as certificates — birth certificates, death certificates or marriage certificates. 

Why are certificates important? A birth certificate is a legal document used to establish 
identity. It shows who you are, and when and where you were born. You need a birth 
certificate to enroll a child in school; to get a Social Security card, a driver’s license or 
government benefits; or to apply for a passport. 

The death certificate is the official legal record of death. A death certificate is needed to 
settle the affairs of your loved one. It has information about the person who died and the 
cause of their death. Insurance companies, the Social Security Administration and other 
agencies may ask for certified copies of the death certificate as proof of death. 

How are the fees used? Fees for vital records support these services provided by state 
and county vital records offices:

• Registering and storing vital records:

Each vital event in Oregon is registered and stored with the state vital records office. 
Information comes from hospitals for births, funeral homes for deaths, county clerks 
for marriage and the courts for divorce. The state vital records office must make sure 
each vital record has complete and legal information, and is numbered and indexed 
so each one can be easily found. Any changes made to the records at any time must 
be documented and tracked. Currently, the state vital records office has more than six 
million vital records and adds about 128,000 each year. Many of the vital records are 
now registered and stored electronically. 

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION
Center for Health Statistics

www.healthoregon.org/chs | Phone: 971-673-1190 | FAX: 971-673-1203

(Continued on reverse)

http://www.healthoregon.org/feechanges
http://www.healthoregon.org/chs


2

This document can be provided upon request in an alternate format for individuals with disabilities or in a language 
other than English for people with limited English skills. To request this publication in another format or language, 
contact the Center for Health Statistics at 971-673-1190 or 711 for TTY.

OHA 9770 (10/2017)

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION

Center for Health Statistics  
www.healthoregon.org/chs 
Phone: 971-673-1190 
FAX: 971-673-1203

• Screening and processing orders for certificates:

More than 170,000 orders for certificates are completed by Oregon Vital Records each 
year. County vital records offices can issue death and birth certificates for the first six 
months after the event. Vital records are confidential and access is limited to specific 
people for 100 years for birth records and 50 years for the other records. All orders are 
screened to make sure only persons that are eligible can get them. Screening also is a 
way to prevent fraud and identity theft. 

• Analyzing data from vital records:

Some of the most important facts about the health of Oregonians come from vital records. 
Information about low birth weight babies and access to prenatal care is gathered from 
birth certificates. Death rates, life expectancy measures and information on leading causes 
of death come from death certificates. 

For more information, go to www.healthoregon.org/feechanges or call 971-673-1190.

http://www.healthoregon.org/chs
http://www.healthoregon.org/feechanges


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Lease for Non-Commercial Airplane Hangar Site 10 at Brookings 
Airport - Moore  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10-04-17 DEPARTMENT:   Counsel  TIME NEEDED:  5 min. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: HuttlPHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 09-27-17    
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Hangar 10 recently sold.  New owner Lessee opted to enter 
into a new lease vs transfer existing lease  
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Lease 
(1)Lease      
(2)Order  
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:  Darren C. Moore   
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address: 45 Oceanaire    
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:  Palos Verdes, CA.  90275 

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Adminstrative Actions 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Hangar Lease Contract Agreement   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us
































 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order   ) 
Authorizing the Board of  ) 
Curry County Commissioners )  ORDER NO. __________ 
to Execute a Non-Commercial ) 
Hangar Lease with    ) 
Darren Moore   ) 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Darren Moore has purchased Hangar No. 10 at the Brookings 
Airport and desires to enter into a new lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the hangar site is available for such purposes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the lease is in the County standard form with rent set in an 
amount approved by the Board of Curry County Commissioners; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease is for an initial term from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 
2022, with an option to renew; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 271.310 and ORS 271.360, the Board finds 
that the public interest will be furthered by the lease; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS that it is authorized to execute a non-commercial hangar lease 
for Hangar Site #10 at the Brookings Airport with Darren Moore. 
 
 DATED this 4th day of October, 2017. 
 
 
    BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
       
     _________________________________ 
     Thomas Huxley, Chair 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Vice Chair 
 
Approved as to Form:  _________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
John Huttl 
Curry County Counsel  



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Appointment to Board of Property Tax Appeals (BOPTA) 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/04 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  5 Mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: John Hitt  PHONE/EXT: 3287 TODAY’S DATE: 09/28   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: The Assessors office is requesting that the current members of 
Board of Property Tax Appeals be reappointed.Their names are attached.  They all have received the 
required training.  There was no response to a notice soliciting additional applications for the BOPTA   
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Appointment 
(1)List of Board Members     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Appointments 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF PROPERTY TAX APPEALS 

DATA ON POOLS REQUIRED BY ORS 309.067(3) 

 

ORS   BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION  TRAINING 

 

309.067(1)(a)  Commissioner Huxley    Not Needed 
 
 
309.067(1)(b)  David Griffith     Not Needed 
    
   Brent Thompson    Not Needed 
    
    



 
IN THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 
 

In the Matter of an Order ) 
Appointing Three Individual )  
Persons to the Pool of  ) 
Members Who May be  )  ORDER NO. ________________ 
Selected by the County ) 
Clerk to Sit on the Board ) 
Of Property Tax Appeals ) 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Curry County Commissioners has a responsibility to 
appoint a pool of members who may be selected by the County Clerk to sit on the Board 
of Property Tax Appeals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Thomas Huxley, David Griffith and Brent Thompson 
have offered to serve as members on the Board of Property Tax Appeals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Thomas Huxley, David Griffith and Brent Thompson 
are duly qualified to serve on the Board of Property Tax Appeals; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS HEREBY ORDERS that Commissioner Thomas Huxley is re-
appointed to the pool of members described in ORS 309.067 (1)(a), and that David 
Griffith and Brent Thompson are re-appointed to the pool of members described in ORS 
309.067(1)(b) for the Board of Property Tax Appeals with said terms to expire on June 
30, 2018. The data on pools required by ORS 309.067(3) is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A”. This order shall be effective upon its passage. 
 
 DATED this 4th day of October, 2017. 
 

    CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Approved as to form:  

Thomas Huxley, Chair 
___________________________ 
John Huttl 
Curry County Legal Counsel  

Sue Gold, Vice Chair 
 

 
  

Court Boice, Commissioner 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Appointment to Coos/Curry Housing Authority Board 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/4 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  5 Mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: John Hitt  PHONE/EXT: 3287 TODAY’S DATE: 09/28   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: A recent board position became vacant.  We put a notice on 
our website inviting applications.  3 Applications were received. Staff if recommending the appointment of 
Mr. Anthon Baron of Brookings.  His application, along with the other two who applied, is included with 
your agenda packets. 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Application 
(1)Baron Application     
(2)Lawson Application 
(3) Paulsen application 
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Appointments 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

















BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE    ) 
APPOINTMENT OF A   ) ORDER NO.  
MEMBER TO THE COOS CURRY )  
HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD  ) 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a position has become vacant on the Coos Curry Housing Authority 
Board due to a resignation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Curry County Commissioners announced the vacancy, 
and invited interested persons to apply; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anthony Baron has applied and indicated his willingness to serve; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Anthony Baron is 
appointed to the Coos Curry Housing Authority with said term to expire June 30, 2021. 
 
 DATED this 4th day of  October, 2017.   
 
 
 
     CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Thomas Huxley, Chair 
      
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Sue Gold, Vice Chair 
 
      
     _______________________________________ 
     Court Boice, Commissioner 
 
Reviewed as to Form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
John Huttl, Curry County Legal Counsel  
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Curry County/CCH Property Exchange 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/4 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  15 Mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: John Hitt PHONE/EXT: 3287 TODAY’S DATE: 9/28/17   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb:       
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Building Inspection Report - RR Street     
(2)Building Inspection Report - Oregon Street -- Pending  
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Old Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Transfer of Real Property - Previsously approved but contingent on Bldg. Inspection 
Report   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us




































































CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Amendments - Travel Policy for Commissioners & Elected Officials 
 

AGENDA DATEa: Oct 4, 2017 DEPARTMENT:   Commissioner TIME NEEDED:  15 min 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Comm HuxleyPHONE/EXT: 3213 TODAY’S DATE: Sept 27, 2017   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: See attached Memo - Travel Policy Enforcement. 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Order 
(1)Memo - Travel Policy Enforcement     
(2)Vehicle Check-out Mileage Form 
(3) BOC Vehicles Odometer Form - GS12127 GS07089 
(4)Adopted Budget - Commissioners 2017-2018 
(5) Elected Officials Travel Policy Aug 2, 2017 - Order 20438 (highlighted)  
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: New Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Name: _________________________________ Date: Car #: Name: _________________________________ Date: Car #:

Mileage: Begin: ________________ End:_______________ Total Miles:_______________ Mileage: Begin: ________________ End:_______________ Total Miles:_______________

Fuel Reading Begin:  F  ¾  ½  ¼  E Personal Use Miles: _____________ Fuel Reading Begin:  F  ¾  ½  ¼  E Personal Use Miles: _____________
Fuel Reading End:     F  ¾  ½  ¼  E Fuel Reading End:     F  ¾  ½  ¼  E

# Passengers:__________Comments/Problems: # Passengers:__________Comments/Problems:

NO Smoking or Pets in Vehicles NO Smoking or Pets in Vehicles

DO NOT Return Vehicle with less than Half-full Tank DO NOT Return Vehicle with less than Half-full Tank

Gates at County Fueling Stations (ODOT) close at 3:00 PM - Plan Accordingly Gates at County Fueling Stations (ODOT) close at 3:00 PM - Plan Accordingly

Accounting 2.20-415.12 Accounting 2.20-415.12

Assessor 1.10-415.17 Assessor 1.10-415.17

Assessor - Tax Collection 1.10-415.15 Assessor - Tax Collection 1.10-415.15

Commissioners Office 1.11-411.10 Commissioners Office 1.11-411.10

Commissioners Office - Admin. Svcs. 2.20-411.10 Commissioners Office - Admin. Svcs. 2.20-411.10

County Clerk - BOPTA 1.10-411.30 County Clerk - BOPTA 1.10-411.30

County Clerk - Elections 1.10-414.00 County Clerk - Elections 1.10-414.00

County Clerk - Recording 1.10-415.40 County Clerk - Recording 1.10-415.40

County Counsel 2.20-415.30 County Counsel 2.20-415.30

Economic Development 1.27-465.20 Economic Development 1.27-465.20

Information Technology "I.T." 2.20-419.20 Information Technology "I.T." 2.20-419.20

Juvenile 1.10-423.60 Juvenile 1.10-423.60

Payroll/Personnel Dept. 2.20-415.50 Payroll/Personnel Dept. 2.20-415.50

Comm. Dvlpmt. - Building 2.17-424.20 Comm. Dvlpmt. - Building 2.17-424.20

Comm. Dvlpmt. - Planning 2.17-419.10 Comm. Dvlpmt. - Planning 2.17-419.10

Comm. Dvlpmt. - Sanitation 2.17-424.30 Comm. Dvlpmt. - Sanitation 2.17-424.30

Sheriff - Civil & Criminal 1.10-421.20 Sheriff - Civil & Criminal 1.10-421.20

Sheriff - Emergency Services 1.10-429.10 Sheriff - Emergency Services 1.10-429.10

Sheriff - Jail 1.10-421.26 Sheriff - Jail 1.10-421.26

Sheriff - Parole & Probation 1.28-423.50 Sheriff - Parole & Probation 1.28-423.50

Surveyor 1.10-419.15 Surveyor 1.10-419.15

Treasurer 1.10-415.16 Treasurer 1.10-415.16

Veterans' Services 1.10-466.37 Veterans' Services 1.10-466.37

Other Other

FUND__________DEPT__________DIV__________ACT  582-00 FUND__________DEPT__________DIV__________ACT  582-00
(IGS - Motor Pool) (IGS - Motor Pool)



ODOM BOC Monthly Odom

DATE:

TO: COMMISSIONERS 1.11-411.10-490.00-581-00
BOC Eco. Dlvp. 1.27-465.20-490.00-581-00

FROM: GENERAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

RE: ODOMETER READINGS

Please find listed below the vehicles assigned to your Department according to the General Services
Department files.

ODOM Current
8/31/2017 ODOM Assigned To:

72,640 07 089 E241454 07 Ford Taurus
1,974 miles to date FY17-18 Commissioners' Office Sedan

86,434 12 127 E252729 12 Chevrolet Traverse - SUV
1,685 miles to date FY17-18 Commissioner

Charge Economic Dvlpmt. vehicle# Acct 1.27-465.20-490.00-581-00

Charge Commissioners vehicle# Acct 1.11-411.10-490.00-581-00
Charge _________________ vehicle# Acct

Dept. Miles Vehicle Fund

Comm. Eco. Dvlp. Other Dept.
Total Miles to date FY17-18 2,941 0 718

3,659 Total Miles to date FY17-18

Please CORRECT this list according to your records; list MONTH-END ODOMETER readings in the space
provided; and RETURN to the ROAD Department NO LATER than the 5th day of the month.

Thank you,

Diana L. Carpenter
Office Manager
Curry County Road Dept.
247-3391 Fax 247-7804
carpenterd@co.curry.or.us

September 30, 2017

9/26/2017
C:\Users\Tom\Documents\Corruption in Curry County ‐ After Nov 2014\Elected Officials Travel Policy Feb 2017\Enforcement ‐ Oct 4, 2017 BOC\Correspondence ‐ Road Dept\BOC Vehicles GS1212

GS07089.xlsx



The Board of Commissioners' Office is administered by three elected 
County Commissioners.

 Matters must come before the Board in an open meeting for action by the County. 

The Board meets every first and third Wednesday to review matters which must be  
considered and acts on those items on the meeting agenda. The Board's Meeting Schedule

and Agenda is listed on the County Website co.curry.or.us

The Board of Commissioners oversees certain programs that are listed elsewhere in the 
County Budget but are too small to be administered as a separate department. 

The Commissioners' Office is responsible for and the point of contact for most 
membership associations the County belongs to as an entire entity.

Salary FTE
Position Range
Commissioner Elected 3.00

3.00

Prior activity was included in the General Fund.

Commissioners

A resolution was adopted April 2, 2014 establishing an Internal Service Fund called "Commissioners"
beginning with Fiscal Year 2014-2015.  The purpose is to provide funding for Commissioners' salary
and benefits as well as travel and related services costs based upon the cost of governance.  The 
office expenses not otherwise charged to the new internal service fund shall be charged to a new

department in the Administrative Services Fund.

97



L -                                                 -                  1                 1                  
L 1                  I
I Second First Adopted N 2017-2018
N Preceeding Preceeding Budget E Proposed Approved Adopted by
E Year Year This Year # by Budget by Budget Governing
# 06/30/15 06/30/16 06/30/17 T Account Number Account Description Officer Committee Body

Tab 13 Tab 13
1 -                  873             -               1 1.11-411.10-331.00-000-17 Grant - MH Court CFDA 16.745 -                  -                 -                  
2 183,383       114,374       135,278        2 1.11-411.10-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund - Depts 35,487 78,268         35,487         35,487          
3 -                  -                 -               3 1.11-411.10-390.88-110-01 IGS - 1.10 General Fund - Other 30% 37152 82,364         37,152         37,152          
4 73,581         45,327         59,615          4 1.11-411.10-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 35,410 78,633         35,410         35,410          
5 387              226             262              5 1.11-411.10-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 122 270              122             122              
6 1,856           804             748              6 1.11-411.10-390.88-127-00 IGS - 1.27 Econ Development 540 1,203           540             540              
7 -                  -                 -               7 1.11-411.10-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 Sheriff-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 5,817 12,966         5,817           5,817            
8 10,153         1,833           2,710           8 1.11-411.10-390.88-130-00 IGS - 1.30 Brookings Airport 156 396              156             156              
9 1,453           1,004           803              9 1.11-411.10-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 594 1,319           594             594              
10 1,435           1,021           1,706           10 1.11-411.10-390.88-140-00 IGS - 1.40 County Parks 1,223 2,655           1,223           1,223            
11 743              585             748              11 1.11-411.10-390.88-212-00 IGS - 2.12 Victims' Assistance 0 -                  -                 -                  
12 778              456             601              12 1.11-411.10-390.88-213-00 IGS - 2.13 Child Advocacy 231 466              231             231              
13 5,155           3,333           4,195           13 1.11-411.10-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 1,803 3,511           1,803           1,803            
14 5,377           3,493           4,780           14 1.11-411.10-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Development 2,134 5,594           2,134           2,134            
15 930              1,153           1,674           15 1.11-411.10-390.88-221-00 IGS - 2.21 General Services 1,905 4,086           1,905           1,905            
16 1,359           677             534              16 1.11-411.10-390.88-222-00 IGS - 2.22 Vehicle Replacement 0 -                  -                 -                  
17 1,398           827             978              17 1.11-411.10-390.88-224-00 IGS - 2.24 Road Cap Improvement 0 -                  -                 -                  
18 1,811           1,375           1,696           18 1.11-411.10-390.88-231-00 IGS - 2.31 Cable TV Franchise 0 -                  -                 -                  
19 3,706           1,373           1,728           19 1.11-411.10-390.88-233-00 IGS - 2.33 Building Repair & Constrtn Projects 1,267 2,814           1,267           1,267            
20 -                  37,136         -               20 1.11-411.10-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance -                  -                 -                  
21 293,505     215,870     218,056      21 TOTAL RESOURCES 10 274,545     123,841     123,841      
22 166,122       137,262       137,238        22 1.11-411.10-490.00-105-00 Sal - Elected 199,407       66,469         66,469          
23 36,296         36,872         37,072          23 1.11-411.10-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 38,112         38,112         38,112          
24 140              124             101              24 1.11-411.10-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 101              101             101              
25 12,015         10,725         10,499          25 1.11-411.10-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 15,255         5,085           5,085            
26 18,487         9,619           9,619           26 1.11-411.10-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 7,451           5,209           5,209            
27 358              330             366              27 1.11-411.10-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 532              177             177              
28 159              181             165              28 1.11-411.10-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 164              164             164              
29 233,576       195,114       195,060        29 TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 1 261,022       115,317       115,317        

FUND - Commissioners

HISTORICAL DATA
Actual Budget for Next Year 2017-2018

RESOURCE/REQUIREMENT DESCRIPTION
ADOPTED

98



L -                                                 -                  1                 1                  
L 1                  I
I Second First Adopted N 2017-2018
N Preceeding Preceeding Budget E Proposed Approved Adopted by
E Year Year This Year # by Budget by Budget Governing
# 06/30/15 06/30/16 06/30/17 T Account Number Account Description Officer Committee Body

HISTORICAL DATA
Actual Budget for Next Year 2017-2018

RESOURCE/REQUIREMENT DESCRIPTION
ADOPTED

1 -                  -                 -               1 1.11-411.10-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed -                  -                 -                  
2 1,005           1,600           -               2 1.11-411.10-490.00-315-00 Conference Fees 1,000           474             474              
3 -                  125             1,000           3 1.11-411.10-490.00-345-00 Other Services -                  -                 -                  
4 1,240           734             1,600           4 1.11-411.10-490.00-416-00 Util - Cellular Telephone 600              600             600              
5 -                  1,344           1,446           5 1.11-411.10-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins 1,423           1,424           1,424            
6 -                  -                 -               6 1.11-411.10-490.00-541-00 Advertising - Legal 900              900             900              
7 50               215             1,200           7 1.11-411.10-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 750              750             750              
8 4,350           3,729           6,000           8 1.11-411.10-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 3,000           1,420           1,420            
9 10,909         9,664           7,500           9 1.11-411.10-490.00-581-00 IGS - Assigned Vehicles 4,000           1,895           1,895            
10 -                  -                 -               10 1.11-411.10-490.00-582-00 IGS - Motor Pool -                  -                 -                  
11 4,217           2,678           3,500           11 1.11-411.10-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance 1,500           711             711              
12 715              22               -               12 1.11-411.10-490.00-584-00 Travel - Transportation 200              200             200              
13 -                  -                 -               13 1.11-411.10-490.00-595-00 Postage -                  -                 -                  
14 143              -                 100              14 1.11-411.10-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 150              150             150              
15 132              392             -               15 1.11-411.10-490.00-606-00 Sup - Event Food Supplies -                  -                 -                  
16 -                  -                 -               16 1.11-411.10-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Furniture -                  -                 -                  
17 33               634             650              17 1.11-411.10-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services -                  -                 -                  
18 -                  -                 -               18 1.11-411.10-490.00-640-00 Books & Periodicals -                  -                 -                  
19 -                  -                 -               19 1.11-411.10-490.00-650-00 Dues - Membership -                  -                 -                  
20 -                  -                 -               20 1.11-411.10-490.00-651-00 Fees - Miscellaneous -                  -                 -                  
21 22,793         21,138         22,996          21 TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 2 13,523         8,524           8,524            
22 -                  -                 -               22 1.11-411.10-491.15-000-00 Tran To - Veh Replacement -                  -                 -                  
23 -              -              -               23 TOTAL INTER-FUND TRANSFERS 5 -              -              -               
24 256,369     216,251     218,056      24 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 9 274,545     123,841     123,841      
25 37,136       (381)           -                  25 CONTRIBUTION TO/ (FROM) FUND -                  -                 -                   

99



FILED IN CURRY COUNTY CJ:2017-146 
Renee' Kolen, County Clerk 08/10/2017 91149 AM 
Commissioners' Journal 6 PAGES 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

In the Matter of an Order 
Creating Curry County 
Travel Policy for Board of 
Commissioners and 
Elected Officials 

) 
) 
) 

) 

) 

ORDER NO. 2_ 0 :l 38 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2017, the Curry County Board of Commissioners had 
a workshop to discuss a travel policy; and 

WHEREAS, at this workshop, Counsel informed the Board that the County had a 
travel policy for County employees in the Personnel Rules, but this did not include policy 
for Commissioners and other Elected Officials; and 

WHEREAS, due to financial and budget considerations, the Board of 
Commissioners felt it was necessary to implement a travel policy; and 

WHEREAS, due to public concern and testimony about unregulated 
Commissioner and Elected Officials' travel, the Board of Commissioners felt it was in 
the best public interest; and 

WHEREAS, following continued discussion at multiple subsequent meetings and 

favorable consensus by majority of the Board; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 

The attached Curry County Board of Commissioners and Elected Officials Travel 
Policy, marked as Exhibit "A" outlining Regulations, Allowable Expenses and 
Reimbursement Rates, is incorporated by reference, and is approved and adopted. 

DATED this 2nd day of August, 2017. 

t I Travel policy 

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight



Board of Curry County Commissioners 

Court Boice, Commissioner 

Approved as to Form: 

J.1 Travel policy 



EXHIBIT "A" 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONER AND ELECTED OFFICIAL 
TRAVEL REGULATIONS, ALLOWABLE EXPENSES AND REIMBURSEMENT 

RATES 

Travel Policy 
Goals 

This Policy is to implement the goals of authorizing only reasonable and necessary travel 
expenses by encouraging use of telephonic or electronic training and conferencing, encouraging 
use of county pool cars for authorized in-state travel, dis-allowing use of pool cars for in-county 
travel, and establishing limits for meals and lodging expense reimbursement. 

Board review and approval of cumulative travel expenses that exceed $1,500 for any individual 
county elected official within one fiscal year is required before County funds may be spent on 
travel, training, meals, lodging or pool car use regardless of budget line item. 

The Sheriff and Sheriff Department employees are not subject to these rules, but the Board 
encourages the Sheriff Department to use all means available to reduce its travel expenses. 

Travel and training expenses exceeding $1,500 not pre-approved by the Board will be the personal 
responsibility of the Commissioner or Elected Official. Personal responsibility for the expense 
shall be joint and several. 

The Board of Commissioners (Board) retains the right to determine: 
a. The mode of transportation utilized by a County Commissioner or Elected Official. 

b. The number, type and availability of County vehicles. 
c. The process for determining who will be authorized to drive any vehicle on behalf 
of the County. 

A. Board to Approve all Travel Expenses for Commissioners and Elected Officials over $1,500 

All elected official cumulative travel expenses that exceed $1,500 within a single fiscal year sought 
to be paid for by County funds require pre-approval by majority vote of the Board. The Board may 
but is not required to, consider factors such as those described in (B)(l)(c) when deciding requests 
for such travel expenses. 

All travel reimbursement requests for hotel and travel/airfare/car rental expenses shall be 
supported by three quotes. Three quotes are NOT required when the vendor is on a county or 
state-approved vendor list and the charge is at the county or state-approved list rate. 

B. Rules for Travel Meal and Lodging expense of County funds regardless of dollar amount 
For all travel, whether cumulatively above or below the $1.500 annual limit. the following rules 
~ 

1. Three types of travel: Within the County; Out of County within the State; Out of State 
a. Travel within the County not covered by County funds. 

The County will not expend funds for Commissioner or Elected Official Training 

1 I Commissioners and Elected Officials Travel Policy 2017 

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight



Ill 

or Meeting travel within Curry County. This section does not apply to the 
Assessor while conducting assessments. 

b. Use of County Vehicles for out-of-county in-state travel 
Commissioners and Elected Officials are encouraged (not required) to use 
County vehicles or public transportation before using private vehicles when 
conducting County business out of County but within the state. 

While a Commissioner or Elected Official is traveling out of the County for 
business or training activities in a County vehicle, the vehicle is available for 
use by the Commissioner or Elected Official for reasonable incidental 
personal activities. 

Reasonable incidental personal activities include obtaining meals and 
services and providing for other usual personal needs. It is expected that 
personal use of County vehicle will be confined to the immediate area of 
necessary travel. 

Travel to non-work related places or events may be considered action outside 
the scope of County business and is undertaken at the Commissioner or 
Elected Official~s own time and liability. 

c. Out-of- State Travel 
Travel Plan Requirement 

Except in the event of an emergency, and regardless of travel expense 
limitations set forth above, all out-of-state travel for which County 
reimbursement or payment will be sought must be approved in advance by the 
Board. Approval shall be considered following review of a written travel plan. 
The plan must contain the following information: 

a) A statement as to the nature and purpose of the trip. 
b) A list of dates on which the Commissioner or Elected Official will be 
gone on the trip. 
c) An estimate of expected expenses for which County 
reimbursement or payment will be sought. (Example: meals and 
lodging, airfare, ground transportation, and other expenses related to 
the out-of-state travel.) 
d) The current budget line item from which payment is sought to be 
made. 

Approval or denial of County funding of out-of-state travel shall be based upon 
an evaluation by the Board, including but not limited to, the following factors: 

a) The reasonable necessity in making the trip; 

b) Whether there are reasonable alternatives to making the trip; 

c) The availability of County funding to finance the trip; 
d) The reasonableness of the costs submitted in the travel plan; 
e) Whether County business will be jeopardized by the trip 

2. Use of Personal Vehicle 

2 I Commissioners and Elected Officials Travel Policy 2017 

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight



a) When County vehicle is available. 
While not encouraged, Commissioners and Elected Officials may use a personal vehicle 
when conducting County business out of County but within the state. Reimbursement 
shall be paid, on the most direct route (typically an on-line mapping travel application), 
at the rate of $0.30 per mile. 

b) When no County vehicle is available. 
The County will reimburse the Commissioner or Elected Official for use of his/her 
vehicle, on the most direct route, at the rate of $0.45 per mile. 

c) Insurance for Personal Vehicles Required and is Primary. 
In the event a Commissioner or Elected Official uses a personal vehicle for County 
authorized business, liability coverage for third party claims is provided under the 
County auto insurance policy. The insurance coverage by the County is secondary; the 
insurance coverage under the personal vehicle is primary. 

Personal damage or theft to the personal vehicle (collision and comprehensive 
insurance), repairs, maintenance or operating costs, personal injury protection and 
uninsured or underinsured motorist coverage are not available under the County 
insurance policy or reimbursable by the County and must be provided by the 
Commissioner or Elected Official, if desired. 

Commissioner or Elected Officials must still provide insurance required under Oregon 
law to lawfully operate a personal vehicle. 

3. Miscellaneous Vehicle Use Rules 
Whether a Commissioner or Elected Official uses a County vehicle or is authorized to use 
a personal vehicle on official County business, bridge, road, and ferry tolls, and other 
expenses such as parking and storage fees shall be reimbursed at cost, if itemized. 

Claims for maintenance and repair of personal automobiles will not be allowed. Individual 
Commissioner or Elected Official shall be responsible for responding to alleged traffic and parking 
violations (which result in citations) incurred while a County car is checked out or a personal 
vehicle is used for County business, and for paying any fines and assessments which result from 
the violations. Individual Commissioner or Elected Official shall report said moving violations to 
the Board at the first regularly scheduled Board business meeting after return to the workplace. 
Three moving violations within a year constitute grounds for suspending County vehicle driving 
privileges. The County will conduct a OMV background check annually on Public Officials who use 
County vehicles. 

4. Meal Per Diem Outside the County within the State or Outside the3:ate 
Commissioner or Elected Official \raveling outside of Curry County on official County business 
may claim reimbursement, on a per diem basis, for meals that are not included in conference or 
seminar. If Commissioner or Elected Official ~hooses to eat meals other than those provided as 
part of a conference or seminar, they will be at their own expense. If Commissioner or Elected 
Official chooses to decline a meal provided as part of a conference or seminar, they cannot 
apply for reimbursement for that meal. Travel costs supported by various state and federal 
grants normally require special accounting for allowable costs to be tracked at the departmental 
level. Please consult the County Accountant for guidance. 

When a Commissioner or Elected Official is required to travel outside Curry County on official 

3 I Commissioners and Elected Officials Travel Policy 2017 

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight



County business for more than twenty-four (24) hours, he/she shall receive a daily per diem of 
$42.00 for each full twenty-four (24) hour period. 

Receipts are not required to support payment of per diem. Advances for per diem may be 
allowed for travel from the workplace when the request is made at least two weeks in advance 
of departure. 

5. Budget Limitations 
Commissioner and Elected Official Travel, Meals and Lodging may only be paid from 
appropriated budget line items in their respective approved budgets. 

Any claim paid for travel expenses outside of the respective Commissioner or Elected 
Official budget Travel Expense Accounts not pre-approved by a majority vote of the 
Board of Commissioners shall be the personal responsibility of the Commissioner or 
Elected Official. 

6. Unexpected Expenses 
Unexpected costs or expenses may be paid by the County upon approval by the County 
Accountant, or in the County Accountant's discretion, the Board. If the County Accountant 
exercised his or her option to approve any unexpected expense, the County Accountant shall 
then file a written report for information purposes for the Board to review at its next regular 
business meeting. 

4 I Commissioners and Elected Officials Travel Policy 2017 

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight

Tom
Highlight



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Additional Audio/Video Equipment - Meeting Room & Website Video:  
 

AGENDA DATEa: Oct 4, 2017 DEPARTMENT:   Commissioner TIME NEEDED:  5 min 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Comm HuxleyPHONE/EXT: 3213 TODAY’S DATE: 9/27/17   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: During the September 13, 2017 Workshop (PEG) channel 
presentation, this pending request for purchase w/PEG funds was discussed.  This additional equipment 
will add wireless microphones for use during budget committee meetings and when additional meeting 
participants require microphones.  Speakers in the hallway adjacent to the meeting room will be installed.  
Two or three existing wireless stick microphones will be moved to the Blue Room along with the older 
audio mixer that was used with the older video system. Software for streaming video on the new website is 
included along with equipment installation. See attached Quote for $7,092.75 (includes 5% contingency). 
Additional work in the Blue Room will include running 110volt service to the column where the laptop 
computer connects and two (2) wireless mice. Additional cost $750.  Existing PEG funds will be used for 
the purchase of this equipment.  Request the Board direct county counsel to draft a purchase agreement 
with Brandt Media to provide the equipment and installion (excludes electrical work).  
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Curry New Quote 2017 Brandt Media     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Consent Calendar 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           



Part Part Number Quanity Cost Line Cost Item Description Hours Rate Total Labor
ATLAS VOLUME CONTROL 1 $100.00 $100.00 Volume control for hall speakers Brandt Media Labor 16 $85.00 $1,360.00
ATLAS SPEAKERS 2 $100.00 $200.00 2 hall speakers
Tricaster Advanced ADVANCED 1 $1,995.00 $1,995.00 Upgrade to tricaster
Shure SCM 810 SCM 810 1 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 New mixer for chambers
SHURE MX1185 SM 93 1 $200.00 $200.00 replacement wired mic
SHURE BLX288 BLX System 2 $750.00 $1,500.00 4 new lavaliers for chambers

Note: Addition of 4 new lavaliers would allow us to bring one lav one stick and the old $5,395.00
mixer back down stairs.

Total $6,755.00

GRAND TOTAL $7,092.75
Total due at signing



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Payroll Distribution change for Sheriff John Ward 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10-4-17 DEPARTMENT:   BOC  TIME NEEDED:  15 Mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Court Boice PHONE/EXT: 3229 TODAY’S DATE: 09/27   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Commissioner Boice is again recommending a payroll 
adjustment for Sheriff John Ward's Salary.  Through the Chetco Bar Fire, he demonstrated teriffic 
leadership.  I personbally witnessed he and  his staff working extremely hard and making some very,very 
difficult decisions -- choices that ultimately proved to be incredibly sound and critically wise for our 
Citizens. This was originally budgeted to include the PERS contribution of $1148 per month.  Mr. Ward 
retired from PERS effective 1/1/17, so he does not receive that portion of his compensation package.  He 
requests an equitable transfer of that allocated budget item from PERS to his salary retroactive to July 1, 
2017 and going forward as Sheriff.  This action would not change the base salary of the Sheriff nor for any 
future person in this position.  If the Commision agrees, staff can prepare a payroll adjustment Order for a 
future Regular Meeting.  Such an order would  not change the budget as it is not an additional expenditure 
from the County General Fund…  
 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Proposal 
(1)          
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)  Funds available but currently allocated to PERS contribution 
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail) Sheriff's Office 
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: New Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Changes expense from PERS to wages.   

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: All Care Grant Discussion Next Steps 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/04/2017 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  20 mins 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: JHuttlPHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 09/24/2017   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Local organizations have applied to the County for 
distributions of funds received by the County from Allcare.  The Board tasked County Counsel to obtain a 
written agreement from Allcare that (a) allowed the County to use the funds for non-housing study 
purposes, and (b) described the shared responsibilities for grant administration.  Allcare has sent a letter to 
the Commissioners confirming that the grant funds can be used for non-housing study purposes.  The letter 
also proposed terms of grant administration. Staff seeks feedback whether Allcare's terms are acceptable or 
further discussion is needed.  Other options can be discussed.    
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Letter to Board from Allcare     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Old Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Depending on Board Direction   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           





CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Brookings Head Start Workshop Summary Document  
 

AGENDA DATEa: 100417 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  20 mins 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: JHuttlPHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 09/27/2017   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: After the work session of September 13, 2017, the Board 
directed Counsel to develop a one-page document that outlined the key points form the discussion.  A one-
pager was drafted by Counsel and circulated to Mike Lehman at ORCCA, Tracy Loomis at CCD, Becky 
Baxter at State of Oregon and John Hitt Interim County Administrator.  Changes were incorporated and 
document presented to Board for review.  The attached document represents the document with changes 
after Board comment.  Board may consider adoption of additional comments or format submitted by Chair.  
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Staff Summary Document     
(2)Tom Huxley Comment Documents 
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Old Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) summary of workshop direction going forward questionable legal impact   
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           



BROOKINGS HEAD START OPTIONS IDENTIFIED 
AS OF SEPTEMBER 13, 2017 

 
Option to Stop Now     Option to Stop Later 
If the Board elects to terminate activity on the 
Brookings Headstart CDBG grant project now, then 
the IFA (Infrastructure Finance Authority) will re-
classify the grant as a “planning” grant and all 
grant monies paid to date would be considered 
appropriately spent on the planning of this project.   
 
The IFA would not exercise any grant option of 
reclaiming or recapturing disbursed grant funds 
(repayment of expended funds) from the County.  
 
The project, as it was originally awarded, would 
not be completed.  The County would pay all the 
outstanding invoices to date from CCD for grant 
administration/environmental review and 
complete the administrative closeout 
requirements for the grant. 
 
The County would have to resolve on its own at its 
own expense any issues remaining with the prior 
architect.   The County would look to ORCCA for 
payment of any costs of the project not covered by 
grant funds.  
 
The grant contract will be amended to reflect a 
Planning Only Grant and close out process would 
need to be accomplished in accordance with CDBG 
process. 

If the Board elects to continue activity now and 
stop later, then two possibilities were identified.  
 
Possibility A:  (not subject to repayment of 
expended funds) 
The County obtain a whole-hazard building 
inspection paid from CDBG grant funds.   
 
The county will obtain a federal standard “yellow 
book” appraisal.   IFA will contribute $3000 to this 
from non-grant funds.  A review appraisal will also 
need to be completed as required by federal 
regulations, which is reimbursable with the CDBG 
grant. 
 
CCD will assist the County with the procurement of 
the building inspector, appraiser and review 
appraiser.  The County would enter into a contract 
with the vendors.  County would advise CCD on 
applicable state and county processes and forms.    
CCD would continue to perform normal duties, 
such as processing invoices, in accordance to the 
terms and conditions of the contract between CCD 
and the County.   
 
After the county has obtained building inspection,  
appraisal and review appraisal, the county may 
decide to stop the project.   
 
If so, the IFA will re-classify the grant as a planning 
grant and all grant monies drawn to this future 
date would be considered appropriately spent on 
the planning of the project.  
 
The County would pay all the outstanding invoices 
to date from CCD for grant administration/ 
environmental review and complete the 
administrative closeout requirements for the 
grant. 
 
The IFA would not exercise any grant option of 
reclaiming drawn CDBG grant funds from the 
County.  



 
The County would have to resolve on its own at its 
own expense any issues remaining with the prior 
architect.   The County would look to ORCCA for 
payment of any costs of the project not covered by 
grant funds.  
 
 
Possibility B: (subject to repayment of expended 
funds) 
The county proceeds with the project post-
inspection, appraisal and review appraisal.   
 
If the County proceeded, IFA would grant an 
extension of time, not to exceed one year, subject 
to the development and approval of a scheduled 
work plan.  
 
The plan would identify what tasks were to be 
performed by the County and CCD, and could also 
include designating a County official as the 
approving authority for County performance under 
the Grant.  ORCCA would provide an on-site 
construction manager, who would not have any 
authority to authorize changes to the project.  All 
changes would have to go through the 
County/Architect, with review and approval by the 
IFA. 
 
Under this option, if the project did not go 
forward, then the IFA would reserve the right to 
require repayment of expended funds. 
 
The County would have to resolve on its own at its 
own expense any issues remaining with the prior 
architect.   The County would look to ORCCA for 
payment of any costs of the project not covered by 
grant funds.  
 

 



Brookings Head Start (IFA Project #C14044) Option A: September 13, 2017 WS 
 
                   Stop Now or After Inspection & Appraisal of Property 
 
Guests Present: 
Chris Cummings – Assistant Director Economic Development – Business Oregon (Also 
known as) Oregon Business Development Dept. & Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA)  
Tawni Bean – Regional Project Manager – Business Oregon (Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 
Tracy Loomis – Community Development Director – CCD Business Development Corp 
Michael Lehman – Oregon Coast Community Action (ORCCA) 
 
                            Stop Now – Before Inspection & Appraisal 
 
• County may return grant Project C14014 to IFA at no cost to county 
• IFA will not exercise grant contract options of reclaiming/recapturing disbursed funds 
• IFA will reclassify grant Project C14014 as a “Planning Project”  
• All grant monies paid to date (9/13/2017) will be considered appropriately spent 
• No negative impact will be reflected in future Curry County IFA/CDBG grant applications   
• Close out process will be required according to CDBG requirements 
• County at its expense will resolve any issues with the prior architect 
• County will look to ORCCA for payment of any project costs not covered by grant funds 
• CCD ??? any further compensation at this stage 
 
Note:  Effective May 2017 Grant ‘Draws’ received $117,054.00 
 Effective May 2017 Grant ‘Paid out to date’ $110,859.97 
 
  
            Inspection & Appraisal of Property 
 
• County obtain a ‘whole-hazard’ building inspection – paid from CDGB grant funds 
• CCD to assist county in procurement of building inspection – paid from CDBG grant funds 
• County to obtain federal standard ‘yellow book’ appraisal – IFA will contribute $3,000 
• Costs for ‘yellow book’ appraisal exceeding $3,000 paid from CDBG grant funds 
• CCD to assist county in procurement of ‘yellow book’ appraisal – paid from CDBG grant 
• CCD to receive compensation for inspection & appraisal assistance from CDBG grant funds 
 
Same scenario above “Stop Now – Before Inspection & Appraisal” would apply should county 
elect to Stop Now - After Inspection & Appraisal of Property 
 
 



Brookings Head Start (IFA Project #C14044) Option B: September 13, 2017 WS 
 
                        Continue After Inspection & Appraisal of Property 
 
Guests Present: 
Chris Cummings – Assistant Director Economic Development – Business Oregon (Also 
known as) Oregon Business Development Dept. & Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA)  
Tawni Bean – Regional Project Manager – Business Oregon (Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 
Tracy Loomis – Community Development Director – CCD Business Development Corp 
Michael Lehman – Oregon Coast Community Action (ORCCA) 
 
                   All Concessions from IFA (Option A) Are Off the Table  
 
• All existing IFA Project #C14014 terms remain in place 
• Grant ‘Draws’ are the responsibility of the County and do not increase the grant amount 
• County effectively begins the project having already used approximately $117,000  
• County will be required at its expense to submit a detailed work plan to IFA for approval 
• Upon approval of the detailed work plan IFA will grant a one year extension of time 
• County will not be reimbursed for county project management or in house legal services 
• County will be reimbursed for ‘outside counsel’ within limitations of the grant scope 
• ORCCA will provide an onsite project construction manager for the duration of the project 
• Agreement between County and ORCCA – compliance with IFA Exhibit A. 8. a. (1) use:   
• County at its expense will resolve any issues with the prior architect 
• County will look to ORCCA for payment of any project costs not covered by grant funds 
• CCD will provide project oversight as the ‘grant administrator’ per the existing agreement  
 
Note:  Effective May 2017 Grant ‘Draws’ received $117,054.00 
 Effective May 2017 Grant ‘Paid out to date’ $110,859.97 
 
  
      
 



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Update on Charter Channel 181 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/04/2017 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  10 min 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: JHuttlPHONE/EXT: 3218 TODAY’S DATE: 09/27/2017   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: Update on status of second PEG channel. 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Revised Draft Agreement and Exhibits Curry County Voices     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Old Business 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail) Staff Report    
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
PUBLIC ACCESS ADVISORY COUNCIL 

 
 

Curry County Voices will form a Public Access Advisory 
Council to provide feedback and oversite concerning Curry 
County Voices' policies and procedures, to pursue 
opportunities to raise public awareness of and support of 
Public Education Government access on Channel 181, to 
encourage non-commercial support for programming following 
industry-standard guidelines, as well as to serve as a third 
party review board for programming-related complaints. 
 
All persons, firms, corporations, businesses, organizations, 
schools, institutions and other entities in Curry County who 
subscribe to the purpose of Curry County Voices and who 
support Curry County Voices by participation or with a 
contribution of money, service or equipment will be  
eligible for membership in the Public Access Advisory 
Council.   
 
All members of the Council will have the right to notice of 
and attendance at meetings of the Council. Any person or 
entity interested in becoming a member of the Council can 
demonstrate his or her interest in the affairs of Curry 
County Voices by: 
 

a.  Submitting a duly signed application, on a form 
provided by Curry County Voices, and  
 
b.  Paying membership dues, if any, by category, as 
they may from time to time be established by Curry 
County Voices. 
 

The Council will meet at least quarterly at a time and 
place to be determined by Curry County Voices.  Meetings of 
the Council shall be open to the public.  
 
Among other things, the Council will: 
 
(a) assist Curry County Voices in developing and 
implementing fundraising strategies and plans and in 
assisting in the implementation of specific fundraising 
projects undertaken by Curry County Voices; 
 
(b) assist Curry County Voices in developing and 
implementing strategies for the development of a broad-
based membership in the Council which encourages and 



 

 

fosters the development and production of access and 
community programming;  
 
(c) assist Curry County Voices in complying with 
appropriate federal law and regulations governing the 
availability of program time and Curry County Voices' 
equipment and facilities in order to provide for non-
discriminatory access and use. 
 
(d) assist Curry County Voices in developing and 
implementing policies for training activities, including 
outreach to publicize the availability of training 
activities and determining the subject matter of workshops, 
classes and certification requirements; 
 
(e) assist Curry County Voices in ensuring that a wide  
variety of programming which addresses the interests and 
needs of residents, including programming responsive to the 
needs of schools, is available whether through the 
production or acquisition of alternative programming;  
 
(f) assist Curry County Voices in reviewing and evaluating 
the allocation of channel capacity and other programming 
capacity;  
 
(g) assist Curry County Voices in developing and evaluating 
strategies to maximize the quantity and quality of original 
programming produced or fostered by Curry County Voices; 
and 
 
(h)  assist Curry County Voices in exploring ways of 
integrating Curry County Voices into the community to serve 
the diverse needs of all community, school and municipal 
organizations, ethnic groups and other interests, in 
informing and generally educating all such diverse groups 
about Curry County Voices and its services and facilities, 
and in cultivating interest in and access to Curry County 
Voices. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
EQUIPMENT TO BE ACQUIRED 

 
3 Pelican Cases @ $200 each        600 
 
3 JVC GY-HM200U 4KCAM Compact Handheld Camcorders 
  @ $1,295 each       3,885 
 
3 Camera batteries @ $25 each         75  
 
3 Davis & Stanford Provista 7518B Tripods 
  @$160 each           480 
 
3 Movo Lavalier Wireless Mic Systems 
  @ $300 each           900 
 
3 Light Kits @ $926 each       2,778 
 
2  12”MacBook Pros @ $1,100          2,200 
 
             $10,918 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              



 

 

ATTACMENT C 
BRANDT SERVICES 

 
 
Teach field certification workshop quarterly.   
              
Facilitate access to and use of field equipment in the field 
or at facilities made available by Curry County Voices.  
 
Be responsible for access to field equipment, including 
maintaining sign-out and sign-in records.  
 
Provide training and facilitate production of programming 
for Channel 181. 
 
Scheduling and monitoring programming on Channel 181. 
 
Equipment maintenance and material preparation.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      



 

1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REVOCABLE PERMIT TO OPERATE NON-COMMERCIAL PEG 
CHANNEL 181 

TO BE OPERATED BY CURRY COUNTY VOICES 
 
 

 This Agreement regarding Charter Public, Educational or 
Governmental (PEG) Channel 181 is executed as of this _____ 
day of October, 2017 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by 
and between Curry County acting by and through its Board of 
Commissioners (hereinafter, “the County”) and The Gold Beach 
Rotary Foundation, Inc. doing business as Curry County 
Voices (hereinafter, “Curry County Voices”).  The purpose of 
this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions 
governing the operation of the County’s Charter 
Communications' PEG Channel 181 by Curry County Voices. 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 611 of the Communications Act, 47 
U.S.C. § 531, as amended, authorizes governmental 
franchisors to require cable providers to set aside channel 
capacity to provide access for public, educational or 
governmental (“PEG”) programming; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Curry County has been provided with two 
channels for PEG access pursuant to its franchise agreement 
with Charter Communications; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Curry County has entered into an agreement 
with Brandt Media to operate on its behalf one of the two 
channels, Channel 182, limited to governmental programming; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Curry County seeks to have a 501(c)(3) non-
profit entity operate the other channel, Channel 181, 
subject to this revocable permit and applicable PEG laws; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Curry County Voices has represented that, 
with the assistance of Brandt Media, it has the knowledge 
and expertise to operate Channel 181. 
 



 

2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual 
understandings contained herein, the County and Curry County 
Voices agree as follows: 
 
 
1.  Curry County Voices.  
 
 Curry County Voices is incorporated in the State of 
Oregon as a public benefit non-profit charity, is an 
independent non-profit corporation within the meaning of 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended, and has registered with the Secretary of State of 
Oregon the assumed name “Curry County Voices”.  
 
2. Revocable Permit from County to Curry County Voices. 
 
  The County hereby designates Curry County Voices as 
the operator of Charter Communications Channel 181 in Curry 
County.  This designation of Curry County Voices as operator 
of Channel 181 is revocable, with or without cause, upon 
sixty days written notice by the County acting by and 
through its Board of Commissioners. 
 
3.  Responsibility for Programming. 
 
  During the term of this Agreement, Curry County Voices 
shall be fully and completely responsible for all 
programming, scheduling, and administration of Channel 181. 
The County shall have no editorial control over, involvement 
in or responsibility for the content or scheduling of 
programming on Channel 181.  Any attempt by any County 
official or employee to influence the content or scheduling 
of programming on Channel 181 shall be deemed not to be an 
action on behalf of the County. 
 
4.  Compliance with Applicable Laws. 
 
  Curry County Voices shall comply with appropriate 
Federal law and regulations governing the availability of 
program time and the County’s equipment and facilities in 
order to provide for non-discriminatory access and use.  
Curry County Voices shall not discriminate against any 
person in any of its Public Access activities on the basis 
of race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, national origin, 
sex, sexual preference, affectional preference, disability, 
age, marital status or status with regard to public 
assistance.  
 



 

3 

5. Outreach. 
 
  Curry County Voices shall encourage the widest 
possible public participation among community and school 
organizations, including the establishment of a Public 
Access Advisory Council as set forth on Attachment A to this 
Agreement. 
 
6. Training. 
 
  Curry County Voices shall develop and implement 
policies for training activities, including outreach to 
publicize the availability of training activities,  
including workshops, classes and certification 
requirements. 
 
 
7.  Programming. 
 
 (a).  Curry County Voices shall cablecast on Channel 
181 a wide variety of programming which addresses the 
interests and needs of residents of Curry County, including 
programming responsive to the needs of schools, whether 
through the production or the acquisition of programming. 
 
 (b).  While all programming shall be non-commercial in 
nature, programming may highlight the availability of 
products and services of interest to residents.  While 
there shall be no advertising or promotion of specific 
products or services for sale, Curry County Voices may 
solicit program sponsorships and identify briefly such 
sponsors consistent with the Federal Communications 
Commission Guidelines for Acknowledgment of Donors. 
Commission Policy Concerning the noncommercial Educational 
Nature of Educational Broadcasting Stations, 97 FCC 2d 255 
(1984);  Commission Policy Concerning the noncommercial 
Educational Nature of Educational Broadcasting Stations, 90 
FCC 2d 895 1982). 
 
 (c).  During the term of this Agreement, Curry County 
Voices shall comply with all Federal and State laws and 
regulations regarding program content, it being understood 
that Curry County Voices shall have full discretion to 
refuse to cablecast any material that it, in its 
discretion, reasonably believes to be obscene in accordance 
with 47 U.S.C. § 531(e) and §§ 558-559 and 47 CFR 76.702. 
 
 (d).  Before cablecasting material submitted by a third 



 

4 

party, Curry County Voices shall require the third party to 
warrant, in writing, that the third party has obtained all 
necessary ownership rights, clearances and licenses, and 
made all other necessary arrangements with every interested 
party for lawful transmission of the submitted material. 
 
 (e).  Curry County Voices shall cablecast the following 
written statement intermittently, but not less than five 
(5) times during a 24-hour schedule of Channel 181:  
 

“Opinions expressed on Channel 181 are the sole 
responsibility of the person or entity expressing 
them and do not necessarily reflect the opinions 
of Charter Communications, Curry County Voices, 
or Curry County.” 
 
 

8.  Equipment. 
 
 (a).  Within 30 days of contract execution, the County 
shall initiate procurement and use restricted PEG Franchise 
Fees to purchase the “field equipment” set forth on 
Attachment B to this Agreement, the ownership of which field 
equipment shall be transferred to Curry County Voices for 
training activities and for the production of programming, 
provided ownership shall revert to the County upon any 
termination of this agreement. 
 
 (b).  Within 30 days of contract execution, Curry 
County Voices shall enter into an agreement with Brandt 
Media pursuant to which Brandt Media will provide to Curry 
County Voices the services set forth on Attachment C to 
this Agreement.  Curry County Voices shall be solely 
responsible for the payment for any services rendered by 
Brandt Media with respect to Channel 181. 
 
 
9.  Term. 
 
 This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective 
Date and shall continue in full force and effect through 
December 31, 2018, provided that it may be terminated, with 
or without cause, upon sixty days written notice by the 
County acting by and through its Board of Commissioners. 
All rights to the assumed name “Curry County Voices” shall 
be assigned to the County or its designee immediately upon 
any termination of this Agreement. 
 



 

5 

10.  Independent Contractor. 
 
 It is understood and agreed that Curry County Voices is 
an independent contractor and that no other relationship of 
any kind exists between the County and Curry County Voices.  
The relationship between the County and Curry County Voices 
shall be that established by this Agreement and none other. 
 
11.  Indemnification. 
 
 Curry County Voices shall indemnify, defend and save 
and hold harmless the County of and from any and all suits, 
actions, legal or administrative proceedings, demands, 
claims, liabilities, fines, penalties, losses, injuries, 
damages, expenses or costs, including interest and attorney 
fees, in any way occasioned by the operation of Channel 181 
by Curry County Voices.  
 
12.  Assignment. 
 
 Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein shall be 
assigned by Curry County Voices to any other entity or 
person without the advanced express, written authorization 
of the County acting by and through its Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
13.  No Third-party Beneficiaries. 
 
 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer third-
party beneficiary status on any member of the public to 
enforce the terms of this Agreement. 
 
14.  Governing Law. 
 
 This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon and 
is subject to Oregon law and the jurisdiction of Curry 
County. 
 
15.  Nonwaiver. 
 
 No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held 
to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 
 
16.  Entire Agreement. 
 
 This Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties 
regarding the operation of Channel 181 and supersedes all 



 

6 

prior negotiations and agreements whether written or oral 
regarding the subject matter contemplated herein.  This 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written 
instrument signed by both the County and Curry County 
Voices. 
 
17.  Notices. 
 
 All formal notices required to be given by either party 
shall be given in writing, to county administrator if 
intended for the County, and to The Gold Beach Rotary 
Foundation, Inc. if intended for Curry County Voices. 
 
  
 The Gold Beach Rotary Foundation, Inc. 
 
_________________________ ________ 
Carl King, president     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
_______________________   ________ 
Thomas Huxley, Chair    Date 
 
 
 
______________________   ________ 
Sue Gold, Vice Chair  Date  
 
     
 
______________________   ________ 
Court Boice, Commissioner   Date 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
_______________________   ________ 
John R. Huttl, County Counsel  Date  
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        



CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Designation of Vehicle for Commissioner Boice 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/4 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  15 Mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: Court Boice  PHONE/EXT: 3229 TODAY’S DATE: 09/27   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: See Attached email from Commissioner Boice to 
Administrator John Hitt 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)Email     
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)  Possible Departure depending on the amount of use of the proposed dedicated 
vehicle 
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: Matters from Commissioners 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


From: Court Boice  
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 7:15 AM 
To: John Hitt 
Cc: John Huttl 
Subject: ARS ... One more for the 10-4-17 Meeting  
 
 
Good Morning Administrator Hitt; 
 
I’m sorry I did not get this done yesterday before the 5:00 deadline – it is needed for the Curry  BOC 
General Meeting, 10-4-17.  I assume we  
can get this in on the Supplemental Agenda as it is very important. 
 
Plainly stated; 
 
With the shock of the Chetco Bar Fire, the tremendous resulting devastation for our Citizens and 
County will require me to have a reliable 
Vehicle.  I’m petitioning my fellow board members for an extended “emergency travel vehicle”.  Since 
August 18th, I’ve been using our 15 year  
old vehicle, but economical Ford Taurus.  As Commissioner, unanticipated, however additional and 
significant travel will be needed  
particularly between Gold Beach and Brookings.  In the future it is likely much of these related 
expenses can be recovered for our County as 
you know this fire began in Federal Land.  
 
I will need to follow through with the consistent work I’ve began with State Representative David 
Brock Smith and other Regional Oregon  
Legislative leaders, other Regional County Commission Boards, , Association of Oregon Counties, 
Association of O & C Counties, City of Brookings,  
Oregon Governor Brown, Congressman Peter DeFazio, U.S. Forest Service, Oregon Department of 
Forestry, Senators Wyden and Merkley,  
B.A.E.R., C.M.A.T. and F.E.M.A. teams, C.C.P.L.A., O.E.M., S.O.D. Task Force, and South Coast Lumber– 
this is not a conclusive list . 
 
There is tremendous responsibility and even pressure to be very vigilant with detailed and critical 
requirements in positioning Curry County for  
State and Federal aid vital to our recovery. 
 
Thank You … 
 
 

Court Boice  
 
Curry County Commissioner 
541.247.3229 office 
541.661.6150 cell 



boicec@co.curry.or.us  
www.co.curry.or.us  

Oregon's Fabulous Southwest "Curry Corner" Combining Nature, Country Values and 
Commerce for a better tomorrow.  

Court Boice.org 
 

mailto:boicec@co.curry.or.us
http://www.co.curry.or.us/
http://courtboice.org/


CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA ITEM ROUTING SLIP 

FORM 10-001.1 Rev. 01-13-2017  
PART I – SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: RETURN TO BOC_OFFICE@CO.CURRY.OR.US 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Interim Administrator's Report 
 

AGENDA DATEa: 10/4 DEPARTMENT:   BOC TIME NEEDED:  12 mins. 
aSubmit by seven days prior to the next General Meeting ( eight days if a holiday falls within that seven day period) 
 

CONTACT PERSON: John Hitt PHONE/EXT: 3287 TODAY’S DATE: 09/26   
 

BRIEF BACKGROUND OR NOTEb: N/A 
bIndicate if more than one copy to be signed 
   
FILES ATTACHED:    SUBMISSION TYPE: Discussion/Decision 
(1)          
(2)      
      
Are there originals in route (paper copies with pre-existing signatures) Yes No  
QUESTIONS: 
1.  Would this item be a departure from the Annual Budget if approved?    Yes No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)        
2.  Does this agenda item impact any other County department?   Yes  No  
     (If Yes, brief detail)       
3.  If Land Transaction, filed with the clerk?       Yes  No  N/A  
 
INSTRUCTIONS ONCE SIGNED:   
  No Additional Activity Required 

 OR        
 File with County Clerk     Name:          
 Send Printed Copy to:           Address:          
 Email a Digital Copy to:     City/State/Zip:        

 Other                   
         Phone:                 
Due date to send:        /      /                            Email:         
 

cNote: Most signed documents are filed/recorded with the Clerk per standard process.  
PART II – COUNTY CLERK REVIEW 
EVALUATION CRITERIA:  
CLERK ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item meet filing/recording standards? Yes  No  N/A  
  (If No, brief detail)         
PART III - FINANCE DEPARTMENT REVIEW  
EVALUATION CRITERIA 1-4: 
1. Confirmed Submitting Department’s finance-related responses Yes  No  
    Comment:       
2. Confirmed Submitting Department’s personnel-related materials  Yes  No N/A  
    Comment:      
3. If job description, Salary Committee reviewed:    Yes  No  N/A  
4. If hire order requires an UA, is it approved?   Yes  No  Pending  N/A  
PART IV – COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW 
AGENDA ASSIGNMENT TYPE: (Select) 
 

LEGAL ASSESSMENT: Does this agenda item have a legal impact?                   Yes  No  
  (If Yes, brief detail)         
          
PART V – BOARD OF COMMISSIONER REVIEW/COMMENT 
LIAISON COMMISSIONER AGREES TO ADD TO AGENDA:     
Commissioner Thomas Huxley   Yes  No  
Commissioner Sue Gold     Yes  No  
Commissioner Court Boice   Yes  No  
Not applicable to Sheriff’s Department since they do not have a liaison           

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us

	2017_10_04 1 Agenda
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2017_10_04 3A Admin 4a AGRS 2017_08_16 Minutes
	2017_10_04 3A Admin 4b 2017_08_16 Agenda - Brenda's Minutes (2) revised short and sweet
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2017_10_04 3B Admin 4c 2017_05_03 DRAFT Minutes General Meeting
	...
	CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

	2017_10_04 3C Admin 2a Thank you letter to Brookings
	2017_10_04 3D Assessor 1a AGRS ODFW Sixes River Fishing Access in lieu of tax certification
	2017_10_04 3D Assessor 1b Sixes River Fishing Access Letter
	2017_10_04 3E CCH 1a AGRS  148007  17th Amendment OHA Public Health Financing
	2017_10_04 3E CCH 1b AGREEMENT 148007-17 th Signature Authority to Ken Dukek
	2017_10_04 3F CCH 2a AGRS Vital Records Fee Change
	2017_10_04 3F CCH 2b 2018 County Fee Schedule
	2017_10_04 3F CCH 2c OHA 9770 New Fees for Vital Records FAQ
	2017_10_04 3G Counsel 1a AGRS Brookings Airport Lease Hangar 10 D. Moore
	2017_10_04 3G Counsel 1b Moore Hangar Lease
	2017_10_04 3G Counsel 1c ORDER Approving D. Moore
	2017_10_04 6A Admin 6a AGRS 2017 -BOPTA
	2017_10_04 6A Admin 6b  BOPTA Appoint Exhibit A REDACTED
	2017_10_04 6A Admin 6c ORDER BOPTA Appointment
	2017_10_04 6B Admin 5a AGRS 2017 -Coos-Curry Housing Authority
	2017_10_04 6B Admin 5b Coos-Curry Housing Authority  Tony Baron REDACTED
	2017_10_04 6B Admin 5c Coos-Curry Housing Authority Jordan Lawson App REDACTED
	2017_10_04 6B Admin 5d Lauren Paulson Coos- Curry Housing Authority App REDACTED
	2017_10_04 6B Admin 5e ORDER Coos Curry Housing Committee Baron
	2017_10_04 8 Admin 3a AGRS 2017- Property Exchange
	2017_10_04 8 Admin 3b Curry County  517 Railroad Curry Home Inspection LLC Report 17_95
	2017_10_04 9A BOC 1a AGRS Amendments to Travel Policy for Board of Commissioners and Elected Officials
	2017_10_04 9A BOC 1c Vehicle Check-out Mileage Form
	2017_10_04 9A BOC 1d BOC Vehicles Odometer Form - GS12127 GS07089
	2017_10_04 9A BOC 1e Adopted Budget - Commissioners 2017-2018
	T13 Commissioners

	2017_10_04 9A BOC 1f Elected Officials Travel Policy Aug 2, 2017 - Order 20438 (highlighted)
	2017_10_04 9B BOC 2a Additional Audio-Video Equipment for Meeting Room & Website Video
	2017_10_04 9B BOC 2b Curry New Quote 2017 Brandt Media
	2017_10_04 9B BOC 3a Payroll Distribution change for Sheriff John Ward
	2017_10_04 9C Counsel 2a AGRS 2017 All Care Direction 100417
	2017_10_04 9C Counsel 2c Allcare Letter of 08282017 from Sam Engel
	2017_10_04 9D Counsel 3a AGRS Head Start One Pager 100417
	2017_10_04 9D Counsel 3b Brookings Head Start Work Session Summary 091417_bb edits
	2017_10_04 9D Counsel 3c IFA #C14014 Option A - Stop Now or After Inspection  Appraisal TH 092417
	2017_10_04 9D Counsel 3d IFA #C14014 Option B - Continue After Inspection  Appraisal TH 092417
	2017_10_04 9E Counsel 4a AGRS Curry Voices Ch 181
	2017_10_04 9E Counsel 4b Public Access Advisory Council
	2017_10_04 9E Counsel 4c Attachment B to Channel 181 permit
	2017_10_04 9E Counsel 4d Attachment C to Channell 181 permit
	2017_10_04 9E Counsel 4e Agreement PEG Channel 181 King Third Draft
	2017_10_04 9F Admin 7a AGRS Designation of Vehicle for Commissioner Boice
	2017_10_04 9F Admin 7b Comm Boice E Mail
	From: Court Boice  Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 7:15 AM To: John Hitt Cc: John Huttl Subject: ARS ... One more for the 10-4-17 Meeting

	2017_10_04 11 Admin 1a AGRS CA Report 2017



